
 

 

Assistant Director, Governance and 
 

Monitoring 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Democratic Services 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Direct Line: 01484 221000 
 

Fax: 01484 221707 
 

Please ask forJenny Bryce-Chan 
 

Email: jenny.bryce-chan.gov.uk 
 

Tuesday 27 October 2015 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Licensing and Safety Committee 
 

The Licensing and Safety Committee will meet in the Council Chamber - 
Town Hall, Huddersfield at 10.00 am on Wednesday 4 November 2015. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Assistant Director of Legal, Governance and Monitoring 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

The Licensing and Safety Committee members are:- 
 

 
When a Licensing and Safety Committee member cannot be at the meeting another member can 
attend in their place from the list below:- 
 

Substitutes Panel 
 
Conservative 
D Bellamy 
N Patrick 
J Taylor 
G Wilson

Green 
A Cooper 
R Barraclough

Independent 
T Lyons  
C Greaves 

Labour 
E Firth 
S Hall 
K Rowling 
G Turner 
S Ullah

Liberal Democrat 
C Burke 
J Lawson 
A Marchington 
A Pinnock 
P Scott 

 
 

Member 
Councillor Ken Smith (Chair) 
Councillor Mahmood Akhtar 
Councillor Karen Allison 
Councillor Bill Armer 
Councillor Christine Iredale 
Councillor Marielle O'Neill 
Councillor Andrew Palfreeman 
Councillor Carole Pattison 
Councillor Amanda Pinnock 
Councillor Hilary Richards 
Councillor David Ridgway 
Councillor Ken Sims 
Councillor Mohan Sokhal 
Councillor Michael Watson 
Councillor Amanda Stubley 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
 
 
  Pages 

 
 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 

This is where Councillors who are attending as substitutes will say 
for whom they are attending. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held 11 
February 2015.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

1 - 4 

 

3:   Interests 
 

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

5 - 6 

 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

5:   Deputations/Petitions 
 

The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people 
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

6:   Public Question Time 
 

The Committee will hear any questions from the general public. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

7:   Revised Gambling Policy - Statement Of Principles 
 

This report details the outcome of the consultation process in respect 
of the review of Kirklees Council’s Gambling Policy (Statement of 
Principles) and makes recommendations to Council for its adoption. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

7 - 40 

 

8:   Taxi & Private Hire Licensing - Driver Conditions 
 

This report is to consider a change to the conditions attached to the 
grant of a hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence.  
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 

41 - 72 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

9:   Licensed Vehicle Age Limits & Insurance total loss 
vehicles (write offs) 
 

This report is to consider the existing Licensed Vehicle Age Policy 
and the licensing of vehicles previously written off. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

73 - 86 

 

10:   Assessment Criteria and Convictions Policy for 
Licensed Drivers (1) 
 

This report is to consider the revision of the Policy on the relevance 
of criminal conduct, unsavoury conduct and complaints against 
Licence Holders and Applicants for licences. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

87 - 104 

 

11:   Taxi and Private Hire Licensing - Fees 
 

This report is for the Licensing Committee to determine approval for 
new fees for taxi and private hire licensing. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

105 - 
172 

 
 
 
 



 

 

12:   Briefing Paper - Rossendale 
 

This briefing paper is to inform members of the current status 
nationally of issues arising out of Rossendale. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

173 - 
176 

 

13:   Briefing Paper - UBER 
 

This briefing paper is to inform members of the current status 
nationally with regard to UBER. 
 
Contact: Catherine Walter, Local Land Charges and Highways 
Registry Manager tel: 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

177 - 
180 

 
 



LSC3 

Contact Officer: Jenny Bryce-Chan 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 

LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Wednesday 11 February 2015 

Present: Councillor Ridgway in the Chair 
 Councillors Bill Armer, Tony Brice, Jim Dodds, Steve Hall, Derek 

Hardcastle, Erin Hill, Christine Iredale, Abdul Patel, Hilary Richards,  
Mohan Sokhal 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 
 Councillor Eric Firth substituted for Councillor Masood Ahmed 
 Councillor Terry Lyons substituted for Councillor Karen Allison 
 Councillor Donna Bellamy substituted for Councillor Andrew Palfreeman 
 
2 Appointment of Chair 
 Councillor David Ridgway was appointed chair of the meeting. 
 
3 Minutes  
 The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 15 October 2015 

were approved as a correct record. 
 
4 Interests 
 No interests were declared. 
 
5 Admission of the public 
 The Committee considered the question of the exclusion of the public and 

determined that all the items be taken in public session. 
 
6 Deputations/Petitions 
 No deputations or petitions were received. 
 
7 Public Question Time 
 No questions were asked. 
 
8 Assessment Criteria & Convictions Policy 
 The Committee considered a report which outlined the amendments to the 

scheme of delegation in relation to the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.   

 
 RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 
9 Taxi & Private Hire Licensing – Appointment System 
 The Committee considered a report regarding the appointments system 

currently operated by the licensing service. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 Trade representatives were in attendance at the meeting.  Concerns were 
raised by members of the associations regarding delays in securing 
appointments.  The representatives requested the introduction of half a 
day each week when appointments would not be necessary. 

 
 The Committee considered the submission of the Licensing Manager that 

emergency appointments were available for booking.  
 
 RESOLVED - That the report be noted.  
 
10 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing – 3 year badges 
 The Committee considered a report relevant to the Deregulation Bill 2013-

2014 (HC Bill 191).  The Bill has completed both the Committee stage in 
the House of Commons and the House of Lords.  The amendments to the 
bill are currently being considered by both Houses. Trade representatives 
requested that the Licensing Manager bring back to Committee 
consideration of the introduction of 3 year badges.   

 
 RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 
11 Revised Conviction Criteria – general 
 The Committee considered a report relating to the revised policy on the 

relevance of criminal conduct, unsavoury conduct and complaints against 
License Holders and Applicants for licenses. 

 
 RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 
12 Revised Conviction Criteria – 9 points 
 The Committee considered a report to determine whether paragraph 20 of 

the Assessment Criteria and Convictions Policy for Licensed Drivers 
should remain in its current format, be deleted or amended.  The Licensing 
Manager presented a number of options. 

 
 Representatives from the Hackney Carriage Association, GMB Union and 

North Kirklees Private Hire made representations to the Committee with 
regard to paragraph 20.  They asked that it be amended to require drivers 
with 9 points to take in-house training without the suspension of their 
license. They also made representations as to the financial impact of the 
suspension of licenses to taxi and private hire drivers.   

 
 RESOLVED - That approval be given for paragraph 20 of the Assessment 

Criteria and Convictions Policy for Licensed Drivers to be amended to 
“existing drivers who have accumulated 9 or more penalty points on their 
DVLA driving licence will, at their own expense, be required as soon as 
practically possible to take an extended driving test arranged by the 
council.  In the event that the driver failed the test his/her Hackney 
Carriage/private hire licence will be revoked” 

 
13 Sexual Entertainment Venues 
 The Committee considered a report to seek approval for the adoption of 

the amended Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 in relation to the introduction of a policy relating to 

Page 2



sex establishments, and the licensing of a new category of sex 
establishment called sexual entertainment venue.  

 
 RESOLVED - That the adoption of the Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy 

in relation to sex establishments be approved 
 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

an
d 

S
af

et
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 6



GP2015 

 

 
 
Name of meeting: Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:   4 November 2015 
 
Title of report: Revised Gambling Policy – Statement of Principles 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 
 

No 
 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 
 

No 
 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

No 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director – Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman - 09/09/15 
 
David Smith - 10/09/15  
Debbie Hogg on behalf of  
 
 
Julie Muscroft -10/09/15  
 
 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Cllr Steve Hall – Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected:  ALL 
Ward councillors consulted: No 
 
Public or private:   PUBLIC 
 
1.  Purpose of report 

This report details the outcome of the consultation process in respect of the 
review of Kirklees Council’s Gambling Policy (Statement of Principles) and 
makes recommendations to Council for its adoption. 
 
2. Key points 

2.1 Introduction  

2.1.1 The Gambling Act 2005 requires each Authority to carry out its various    
licensing functions so as to promote the following three licensing 
objectives.  

•   Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder,   
being associated   with crime and disorder, or being used to 
support crime in any way.  

•   Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.  

•   Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



GP2015 

 

 

2.1.2 To achieve these objectives, the Authority is required to publish a 
Statement of Gambling Policy every three years and set out the 
policies the Authority will generally apply to promote the licensing 
objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act. 
The Policy must be agreed by the Full Council.  

 

2.2   The Issues  

2.2.1 The policy document attached (Appendix One) has been circulated 
widely to stakeholders throughout the Kirklees district, and to numerous 
national representative bodies and organisations, with a closing date 
for comments of 1st December 2015 A copy is also posted on the 
Council’s website.  

2.2.2 The draft policy is based on a template issued by the Local Authorities 
Coordinators of Regulatory Services (LACORS). The Gambling 
Commission, in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities, 3rd Edition, May 
2009, recommends that the Licensing Authority give appropriate weight 
to the views of those consulted in respect of the draft policy. In 
determining what weight to give particular representations, the factors 
to be taken into account should include:  

•   Who is making the representations (what is their expertise or 
interest);  

• Relevance of the factors to the licensing objectives;  

• How many other people have expressed the same or similar views;  

• How far the representations relate to matters that the licensing 
authority should be including in its policy statement.  

2.2.3 It is important to demonstrate that in reviewing responses to the 
consultation, due weight and consideration has been given to all 
representations including, where appropriate, why some (if any) have 
been disregarded. This is so that in the event that the policy is 
challenged, the Authority can demonstrate to a court how it arrived at 
the policy.  

2.2.4 Kirklees Council has not at the time of writing this report received any 
representation on its draft policy.  

 
3. Implications for the Council  

3.1 Resource Implications  

There are no specific resource implications in respect of the Gambling 
Policy.  

3.2 Legal Implications  

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Authority to review the Statement 
of Gambling Policy, to consult in respect of the policy and to have 
discussed and formally adopted, published and advertised the policy by 
3 January 2016 for implementation from 31 January 2016.  

 

  

Page 8



GP2015 

 

3.3 Human Rights  

There are no human rights issues specific to the Gambling Policy 
providing the Authority can demonstrate best practice and compliance 
with national guidance in the production of the policy.  

 
4. Consultees and their opinions 
 

• West Yorkshire Police 
• The Local Safeguarding Children Board 
• Representatives of local businesses 
• Local Chambers of Commerce 
• Town Centre Associations 
• Residents of Kirklees and their representatives 
• Kirklees Federation of Tenants & Residents Association 
• Town Councils in the district 
• Parish Councils in the district 
• Local Members of Parliament 
• Ward Councillors 
• Area Committees 
• Sister Services 
• National bodies representing the gambling trade 
• National charities concerned with the social impact of gambling 
• Representatives of existing licence holders 
• Yorkshire Forward 
• Yorkshire Culture 
• West Fire and Rescue 
• Community Safety Partnership 
• Huddersfield University 
• Local financial/debt management agencies 
• Holders of Club Premise Certificates 
• Holders of Lottery Permits 
• Holders of Permits for Amusement Arcades 

 
No opinions received as at the time of writing this report 
 
5. Next steps  
 
To consider the draft policy before recommending for adoption by Full 
Council, please note 2.2.1 refers to the consultation process, which has 
already commenced. 
 
6. Officer recommendations and reasons 

That Members recommend the adoption of the Policy (subject to any 
amendments as a result of consultation), as its Policy for the next three years, 
to Cabinet and then to Full Council.  
 
7. Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
Cllr Hall recommends adoption of the policy to the Council 
 
  

Page 9



GP2015 

 

8. Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers:  
Appendix 1: Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission (3rd 
edition) May 2009  

 
 
9. Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 10



 

 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

 

 
 

GAMBLING POLICY 

2016-2019  

Page 11



 

 

2 

 

 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
T H E  G A M B L I N G  A C T  2 0 0 5  

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 2013 - 2016 

Item Page 

Part A – The Gambling Act  

1. The licensing objectives                3 

2. Introduction                3 

3. Declaration                7 

4. Responsible Authorities                7 

5. Interested parties               8 

6. Exchange of information               9 

7. Enforcement             10 

8. Licensing authority functions 11 

Part B - Premises licences  

1. General Principles 12 

2. Adult Gaming Centres 18 

3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 18 

4. Casinos 19 

5. Bingo 20 

6. Betting premises 20 

7.Tracks 21 

8. Traveling. fairs 22 

9. Provisional Statements 23 

10, Reviews 24 

Part C - Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use 
Notices 

 

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming 
machine permits 

24 

2. Gaming machine permits in premises licensed for the 
sale of alcohol 

25 

3. Prize Gaming Permits 26 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 27 

5. Temporary Use Notices 28 

6. Occasional Use Notices for Tracks 29 
 
 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

All references to the guidance of the Gambling Commission to licensing 
authorities refer to the guidance 4th edition published September 2012 

(updated February 2013). 
 

PART A 

THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 

1. The Licensing Objectives 

In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, licensing 
authorities must have regard to the licensing objectives as set out in section 1 of the 
Act. The licensing objectives are: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated 
with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited 
by gambling 

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: "The requirement in 
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling". 

The council is aware that, as per Section 153, in making decisions about premises 
licences and temporary use notices it should aim to permit the use of premises for 
gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and 

 in accordance with the authority's statement of licensing policy 

2. Introduction 

Kirklees Council is situated in West Yorkshire, which contains 5 

Page 13



 

 

4 

 

 

 

metropolitan councils in total. The council area has a population of approximately 
423,000 (2011 census) making it the largest metropolitan district not based on a 
city in terms of population. In terms of area it is the third largest in West Yorkshire, 
covering 157 square miles. The council area is mainly rural in the south with a 
central urban area around large towns. The area also comprises of several smaller 

towns of varying sizes. These areas are shown on the map below. 

 

The people of Kirklees represent many cultures, faiths, languages and races. A wide 
range of minority groups including Pakistani, Indian, Black Caribbean as well as 
many other smaller communities make up 16 % of the population.   

Kirklees Council has issued a Corporate Plan which outlines t he Council’s 
vision for a ‘New Council’. The priorities throughout the transformation 
program to the ‘New Council’ will focus on building healthy, economically 
resilient communities and protecting the most vulnerable people (the working 

poor, the frail elderly and children at risk of abuse). 

 

 

Page 14



 

 

5 

 

 

The Gambling Policy aims to promote the licensing objectives within the overall 
context of the Corporate Plan. . 

Licensing authorities are required by the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a statement 
of the principles which they propose to apply when exercising their functions. This 
statement must be published at least every three years. The statement must also be 
reviewed from "time to time" and any amended parts re -consulted upon. The 
statement must then be re-published. 

Kirklees Council consulted widely upon their original statement before finalising and 
publishing. A list of those persons consulted is provided below. 

The Gambling Act requires that the following parties are consulted by Licensing 
Authorities: 

 The Chief Officer of Police; 

 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority's area; 

 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority's functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005. 

List of persons this authority consulted: 

 West Yorkshire Police 

 The Local Safeguarding Children Board 

 Representatives of local businesses 

 Local Chambers of Commerce 

 Town Centre Associations 

Page 15



 

 

6 

 

 

• Residents of Kirklees and their representatives 

 Kirklees Federation of Tenants & Residents Association 

 Town Councils in the district 

 Parish Councils in the district 

 Local Members of Parliament 

 Ward Councillors 

 Area Committees 

 Sister Services 

 National bodies representing the gambling trade 

 National charities concerned with the social impact of gambling 

 Representatives of existing license holders 

 Yorkshire Forward 

 Yorkshire Culture 

 West Fire and Rescue 

 Community Safety Partnership 

 Huddersfield University 

 Local financial/debt management agencies 

 Holders of Club Premise Certificates 

 Holders of Lottery Permits 

 Holders of Permits for Amusement Arcades 

Our consultation will end on 1st December 2015 

Should you have any comments as regards this policy statement please send them 
via e-mail or letter to the address below: 

Licensing Service 

Flint Street 
Fartown 
Huddersfield 
HD1 6LG 
 
Email: licensing@kirklees.gov.uk 

Tel 01484 456868 

Fax 01484 223477 

 

Page 16



 

 

7 

 

 

3. Declaration 

It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any person to 
make an application, make representations about an application, or apply for a review 
of a license, as each will be considered on its own merits and according to the 
statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005. 

In producing the final statement, the council declares that it has had regard to the 
licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the statement. 

4. Responsible Authorities 

These are generally public bodies that must be notified of all applications, they are 
entitled to make representations to the Council which are relevant to the licensing 
objectives. They have no obligation to respond to applications for premises licences if 
they wish not to do so. 

Section 157(h) of the Act defines them as 

 The Gambling commission 

 The Police 

 The Fire Service 

 The Local Safeguarding Children Board 

 The local planning authority 

 Environmental Health 

 HM Revenue and Customs 

 The licensing authority (the council) 

Each representation will be assessed with regard to the licensing objectives and be 
taken on its own individual merits. 

The council is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply to designate, in 
writing, a body which is competent to advise the authority about the protection of 
children from harm. The principles are: 

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 

      licensing authority's area;  

 and the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected 

persons, rather than any particular vested interest group. 

Page 17



 

 

8 

 

 

In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local 
authorities, this authority designates the Local Safeguarding Children Board for this 
purpose. 

The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the Gambling Act 2005 
are available via the Council's website at: www.kirklees.gov.uk  

5. Interested parties 

Interested parties are certain types of people or organisations who have the right to 
make representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing 
licence. These parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as follows: 

"For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an 
application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the licensing 
authority which issues the licence or to which the applications is made, the person 

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities, 

b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or 
c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)" 

The council is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising 
its powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an 
interested party. The principles are: 

Each case will be decided upon its merits. The council will not apply a rigid rule to its 
decision making. It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance to local authorities. It will also consider the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance that "has business interests" should be given the 
widest possible interpretation and include partnerships, charities, faith groups and 

medical practices. 

The Gambling Commission has recommended that the licensing authority states that 

interested parties include trade associations and trade unions, and residents' and 

Page 18



 

 

9 

 

 

tenants' associations. However, the council emphasises that it will not gen erally 
view these bodies as interested parties unless they have a member who can be 
classed as an interested person under the terms of the Gambling Act 2005 i.e. lives 
sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the activities being 
applied for. 

Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as councillors 
and MP's. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested person 
will be required as long as the councillor / MP represent the ward likely to be  
affected. Likewise, parish councils likely to be affected will be considered to be 
interested parties. Other than these however, this authority will generally require 
written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an advocate / relative) 'represents' 
someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected 
by the authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by 
the authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons, requesting the 
representation is sufficient. 

If individuals wish to approach councillors to ask them to represent their views then 
care should be taken that the councillors are not part of the Licensing Committee 
dealing with the licence application. If there are any doubts then please contact 

Licensing Service, Flint Street, Fartown, Huddersfield, HD1 6LG 
 
 
Email: licensing@kirklees.gov.uk 

Tel 01484 456868 

Fax 01484 456857 

6. Exchange of Information 

Licensing authorities are required to include in their statements the principles to be 
applied by the authority in exercising the functions with respect to the exchange of 
information between it and the Gambling Commission, and the functions with respect 
to the exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to 

the Act. 

The principle that the council applies is that it will act in accordance with the 

Page 19



 

 

10 

 

 

provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information which includes 
the provision that the Data Protection and Freedom of Information Acts will 
not be contravened. The licensing authority will also have regard to any Guidance 
issued by the Gambling Commission to local authorities on this matter when it is 
published, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under 
the powers provided in the Gambling Act 2005. 

Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with other 
bodies then they will be made available. 

7. Enforcement 

The council will work closely with responsible authorities in undertaking its 
enforcement duties under the Gambling Act 2005, be guided by the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance for local authorities and will endeavor to be: 

 Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies  
should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised; 

 Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to 
public scrutiny; 

 Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly; 

 Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user 
friendly; and 

 Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side 
effects. 

The council will endeavor to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far 
as possible. 

The main enforcement and compliance role for the council in terms of the Gambling 
Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other 
permissions which it authorises. The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement 
body for the operating and personal licences. It is also worth noting that concerns 
about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the 
licensing authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission. 

 
This council will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of the 
Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local 
authorities. 

 

Page 20



 

 

11 

 

 

8. Licensing Authority functions 

Licensing Authorities are responsible under the Act for: 

 Licensing premises where gambling activities are to take place by issuing 
Premises Licences 

 Issuing Provisional Statements 

 Regulating members' clubs and miners' welfare institutes who wish to undertake 
certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine 
Permits 

 Issuing Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs 

 Granting permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at 
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres 

 Receiving notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 
2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming machines 

 Issuing Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines 

 Registering small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds 

 Issuing Prize Gaming Permits 

 Receiving and Endorsing Temporary Use Notices 

 Receiving Occasional Use Notices 

 Providing information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences 
issued (see section above on 'information exchange) 

 Maintaining registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 
functions 

The council will not be involved in licensing remote gambling at all. This will fall to 

the Gambling Commission via operating licences. 

 

Page 21



 

 

12 

 

 

PART 8 

PREMISES LICENCES 

1. General Principles 

The council will issue premises licences to allow premises to be used for certain 
types of gambling. The types of premises to which licences will be issued include 
amusement arcades, bingo halls, bookmakers and casinos. 

Premises licences will be subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 
2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which will 
be detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State. Licensing authorities are 
able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be 
appropriate. 

The council is aware that in making decisions about premises licences it should aim 
to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 

 in accordance with the authority's statement of licensing policy. 

It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local 
authorities "moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications 
for premises licences" (except as regards any 'no casino resolution') and also that 
unmet demand is not a criterion for a licensing authority. 

Definition of "premises"  
Premises is defined in the Act as "any place". Different premises licences cannot 
apply in respect of a single premise at different times. However, it is possible for a 
single building to be subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for 
different parts of the building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably 
regarded as being different premises. Whether different parts of a building can 
properly be regarded as being separate premises will always be a question of fact in 
the circumstances. 

The council will take particular care in considering applications for multiple licences 

 

Page 22



 

 

13 

 

 

for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (non-
gambling) purposes. In particular they should be aware that entrances and exits 
from parts of a building covered by one or more licences should be separate and 
identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not compromised and that 
people do not 'drift' into a gambling area. 

The council will pay particular attention to applications where access to the licensed 
premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed or 
unlicensed). Clearly, there will be specific issues that authorities should consider 
before granting such applications, for example, whether children can gain access; 
compatibility of the two establishments; and ability to comply with the requirements 
of the Act. But, in addition an important consideration should be whether, taken as a 
whole, the co-location of the licensed premises with other facilities has the effect of 
creating an arrangement that otherwise may compromise the licensing objectives. 

An applicant cannot obtain a full premises licence until the premises in which it is 
proposed to offer the gambling are constructed. The Gambling Commission has 
advised that references to “the premises” are to the premises in which gambling may 
now take place. Thus a licence to use premises for gambling will only be issued in 
relation to premises that are ready to be used for gambling. It is a question of fact 
and degree whether premises are finished to a degree that they can be considered 
for a premises licence. The Gambling Commission emphasises that requiring the 
building to be complete ensure that the authority can, if necessary, inspect it fully, as 
can other responsible authorities with inspection rights. 

Where premises are not yet built or are about to be altered for the purpose of 
gambling and ultimately a premises licence will be required, the applicant should first 
consider making an application for a provisional statement (see section 9). 

Location  
The council is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the 
location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. 
The council will pay particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable 
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and 
disorder.  

Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards areas where gambling 
premises should not be located, this statement will be updated. It should be noted 
that any such policy does not preclude any application being made and each 
application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how 
potential concerns can be overcome. 

 

Page 23



 

 

14 

 

 

  

The council will need to be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the particular 
location of the premises would be harmful to the licensing objectives. From 6 April 2016, it 
is a requirement of the Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice 
(LCCP), under section 10, for licensees to assess the local risks to the licensing objectives 
posed by the provision of gambling facilities at their premises and have policies, 
procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk assessments, 
licensees must take into account relevant matters identified in this policy.  
 
The LCCP goes on to say licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local 
risk assessments:  

a. to take account of significant changes in local circumstance, including those 
identified in this policy;  
b. when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their 
mitigation of local risks;  
c. when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and  
d. in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new 
premises licence.  

 
The council will expect the local risk assessment to consider as a minimum:  

 whether the premises is in an area of deprivation  

 whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder  

 the ethnic profile of residents in the area  

 the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups  

 the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, 
leisure centres and other areas where children will gather  

 
In any case the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people, including 
people with gambling dependencies, are protected.  
 
Other matters that the assessment may include:  

 The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of 
excessive gambling, the ability of staff to offer brief intervention and how the 
manning of premises affects this.  

 Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and how the 
system will be monitored.  

 The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of persons 
using the premises  

  The number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one time. If at 
any time that number is one, confirm the supervisory and monitoring arrangements 
when that person is absent from the licensed area or distracted from supervising 
the premises and observing those persons using the premises.  

 Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and vulnerable 
persons, which may include dedicated and trained personnel, leaflets, posters, 
self-exclusion schemes, window displays and advertisements not to entice 

passers-by etc.  

Page 24



 

 

15 

 

 

  
 The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care 
providers and other relevant information be provided in both English and the other 
prominent first language for that locality.  

 Where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in respect of a 
track, the location and extent of any part of the premises which will be used to provide 
facilities for gambling in reliance on the licence.  

 
Such information may be used to inform the decision the council makes about whether to 
grant the licence, to grant the licence with special conditions or to refuse the application.  
 
This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be 
decided on its merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show how the concerns can 

be overcome 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes  
The council will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory / regulatory 
systems where possible, including planning. The council will not consider whether a 
licence application is likely to be awarded planning permission or building regulations 
approval, in its consideration of it. It will though, listen to, and consider carefully, any 
concerns about conditions which are not able to be met by licensees due to planning 
restrictions, should such a situation arise. 

Licensing objectives  

Premises licences granted must be consistent with the licensing objectives. With 
regard to these objectives, the council has considered the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance to local authorities and some comments are made below. 

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

The Gambling Commission will be taking a leading role in preventing gambling from 
being a source of crime. The Gambling Commission's Guidance does however 
envisage that licensing authorities should pay attention to the proposed location of 
gambling premises in terms of this licensing objective. Thus, where an area has 
known high levels of organised crime the council will consider carefully whether 
gambling premises are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be 
suitable such as the provision of door supervisors. The council is aware of the 
distinction between disorder and nuisance and will consider factors such as whether 
police assistance was required and how threatening the behavior was to those who 
could see it, so as to make that distinction. 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

The council has noted that the Gambling Commission has stated that it would 
generally not expect licensing authorities to become concerned with ensuring that 
gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via operating and 
personal licences. There is however, more of a role with regard to t racks which is 
explained in more detail in the 'tracks' section. 

Page 25



 

 

16 

 

 

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling 

 
The Kirklees Safeguarding Children Board has a webpage dedicated to 
providing  
local information about child safety, child sexual exploitation, policies and 
procedures including risk factors and signs and symptoms:  
 
http://www.kirkleessafeguardingchildren.co.uk/ 

The council is aware that this objective means preventing children from taking part in 
gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so that gambling products are not 
aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children). The council will therefore 
consider whether specific measures are required at particular premises, with regard 
to this licensing objective. Appropriate measures may include supervision of 
entrances / machines, segregation of areas etc. 

The council will also make itself aware of the Codes of Practice which the Gambling 
Commission issues as regards this licensing objective, in relation to specific 
premises such as casinos. 

As regards the term "vulnerable persons" it is noted that the Gambling Commission 
is not seeking to offer a definition but states that "it will for regulatory purposes 
assume that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people 
who gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make 
informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or 
drugs." The council will consider this licensing objective on a case by case basis. 
Should a practical definition prove possible in future then this policy statement will be 
updated by way of a revision. 

Conditions  
Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be: 

 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility; 

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 

 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 

 reasonable in all other respects. 

Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although 
there will be a number of measures the council will consider utilising should there be 
a perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only 
areas etc. There are specific comments made in this regard under some of the 
licence types below. The council will also expect the licence applicant to offer 
his/her own suggestions as to way in which the licensing objectives can be met 
effectively. 

14 

Page 26

http://www.kirkleessafeguardingchildren.co.uk/


 

 

17 

 

 

The council will also consider specific measures which may be required for buildings 
which are subject to multiple premises licences. Such measures may include the 
supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from non -gambling areas 
frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult 
gambling specific premises in order to pursue the licensing objectives. 

This authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on offer in 
premises to which children are admitted that: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated 
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to 
prevent access other than through a designated entrance; 

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 

 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by the staff or the licence holder; and 

 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed 
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple 
premises licences are applicable. 

There are conditions which the council cannot attach to premises licences which are: 

 any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with 
an operating licence condition; 

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation; 

 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the 
Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for casino 
and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated; and 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 

Door Supervisors  
The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance for local authorities that licensing 
authorities may consider whether there is a need for door supervisors in terms of the 
licensing objective of protection of children and vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of preventing premises 

becoming a source of crime. 

 

Page 27



 

 

18 

 

 

Where operators and the council decide that supervision of entrances / machines is 
appropriate for particular cases, it will need to be decided whether these need to be 
Security Industry Authority (SIA) licensed or not. It will not be automatically assumed 
that they need to be. 

2. Adult Gaming Centres 

The council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for 
example, ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises. 

The council may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such as: 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-exclusion schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures. 

3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres: 

The council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas. 

The council may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such as: 

 CCTV 

 

Page 28



 

 

19 

 

 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-exclusion schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

 Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school children on 
the premises 

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures. 

The council will refer to the Commission's website to see any conditions that apply to 
operating licences covering the way in which the area containing the category C 
machines should be delineated. The council will also make itself aware of any 
mandatory or default conditions on these premises licences, when they have been 
published. 

Changes on the numbers of machines permitted came into force in 2011. Please see 
appendix one for limits on numbers of machines at the above type of premises. 

4. Casinos 

The council has not passed a 'no casino' resolution under Section 166 of the 
Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so. Should the council 
decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it will update this policy statement with 
details of that resolution. Any such decision will be made by the full council. 

Casinos and competitive bidding  
The council is aware that where a licensing authority is empowered to grant a 
premises licence for a new style casino (i.e. the Secretary of State has made such 
regulations under Section 175 of the Gambling Act 2005) there are likely to be a 
number of operators which will want to run the casino. In such situations the local 
authority will run a 'competition' under Schedule 9 of the Gambling Act 2005. The 
council will run such a competition in line with any regulations / codes of practice 
issued under the Gambling Act 2005. 

Licence considerations/conditions  
The Gambling Commission has stated that "further guidance will be issued in due 

course about the particular issues that licensing authorities should take into account  

Page 29



 

 

20 

 

 

in relation to the suitability and layout of casino premises". This guidance will be 
considered by the council when it is made available. 

Betting machines  

The council will take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter 
positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to 
monitor the use of betting machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for 
those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. 

5. Bingo premises 

The council is aware that if children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo 
that they do not participate in gambling, other than on category D machines. Where 
category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are 
admitted the council will ensure that: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a designated entrance; 

 only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 

 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed 
by staff of the operator or the licence holder; and 

 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently displayed 
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

This council is also aware that the Gambling Commission has stated that it is going 
to issue further guidance about the particular issues that licensing authorities should 
take into account in relation to the suitability and layout of bingo premises. This 
guidance will be considered by the council once it is made available. 

6. Betting premises 

Betting premises are premises such as bookmakers and betting offices where 
various types of gambling are authorised to take place. Children and young persons 
will not be able to enter such premises. 

Betting premises will be able to provide a limited number of betting machines. The 

council will take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter 

 

Page 30



 

 

21 

 

 

positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to 
monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for 
those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. 

7. Tracks 

Tracks are sites (including racecourses and dog tracks) where races or other 
sporting events take place. There are currently no tracks within this council area. 

Should the need arise the council is aware that such tracks may be subject to one or 
more than one premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of 
the track. The council will especially consider the impact upon the third licensing 
objective (i.e. the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed 
or exploited by gambling) and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of 
premises are distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas where they 
are not permitted to enter. 

The council will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate 
suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming 
facilities. It is noted that children and young persons will be permitted to enter track 
areas where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse 
racing takes place, but that they are still prevented from entering areas where 
gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

The council may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such as: 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 
 Self-exclusion schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare 

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 

 

Page 31



 

 

22 

 

 

measures. 

Gaming machines  

The council will consider the location of gaming machines at tracks, and applications 
for track premises licences will need to demonstrate that, where the applicant holds 
a pool betting operating licence and is going to use his entitlement to four gaming 
machines, these machines are locate in areas from which children are excluded. 
Children and young persons are not prohibited from playing category D gaming 
machines at a track. 

The council is aware that the Gambling Commission is preparing guidance as 
regards where gaming machines may be located at tracks and any special 
considerations that should apply in relation, for example, to the supervision of the 
machines and preventing children from playing them. 

Betting machines  
The council will take into account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to 
monitor the use of the betting machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. It will 
also take note of the Gambling Commission's suggestion that licensing authorities 
will want to consider restricting the number and location of such machines in respect of 
applications for track betting premises. 

Conditions on rules being displayed  

In line with guidance from the Gambling Commission the council will consider 
attaching a condition to track premises licences requiring the track operator to 
ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that 
other measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the public. For 
example, the rules could be printed in the race-card or made available in leaflet form 
from the track office." 

8. Travelling Fairs 

Travelling fairs have traditionally been able to provide various low stakes gambling 
without the need for a licence or permit provided that certain conditions are met. 
This provision continues in a similar fashion in the new Act. 

The council will decide whether, where category D machines and / or equal chance 

prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use at travelling fairs, the 

 

Page 32



 

 

23 

 

 

statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an 
ancillary amusement at the fair is met. 

The council will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair. 

It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a 
fair, is per calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs 
are held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying 
the land. The council will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land 
which crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not 
exceeded. 

9. Provisional Statements 

A provisional statement application is a process which allows a developer to 
examine the likelihood of whether a building which has yet to be constructed or 
altered for the purpose of gambling, would be granted a premises licence when the 
building work is complete. It is not a licence and merely gives the holder some form 
of assurance that a premises licence would be granted. Once works are complete a 
full premises licence would still be required. 

In terms of representations about premises licence applications, following the grant 
of a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant authorities or 
interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern matters which 
could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, or they reflect a 
change in the applicant's circumstances. In addition, the authority may refuse the 
premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those attached to the provisional 
statement) only by reference to matters: 

(a) which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence stage; 
or 

(b) which in the authority's opinion reflect a change in the operator's circumstances. 

The council will not take into account irrelevant matters e.g. the likelihood of the 
applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for the 

proposal." 

 

Page 33



 

 

24 

 

 

10. Reviews 

Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or 
responsible authorities; however, it is for the council to decide whether the review is 
to be carried-out. This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is : 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 

 in accordance with the authority's statement of licensing policy. 

Consideration will also be given as to whether the request is frivolous, vexatious, will 
certainly not cause this authority to alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or whether it is 
substantially the same as previous representations or requests for review. 

The council can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason which it 
thinks is appropriate. 

P A R T  C  

PERMITS/TEMPOARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 
(Statement of Principles on Permits) 

The term 'unlicensed family entertainment centre' is one defined in the Act and refers 
to a premises which provides category D gaming machines along with various other 
amusements such as computer games and penny pushers. The premises is 
`unlicensed' in that it does not require a premises licence but does require a permit to 
be able to provide its category D machines. It should not be  confused with a 
`licensed family entertainment centre' which does require a premises licence 
because it contains both category C and D gaming machines. 

The Gambling Act 2005 contains a provision for local authorities to prepare a 
statement of principles that they propose to consider in determining the suitability of 
an applicant for a permit. Schedule 10, Para 7 of the Act states, "in preparing this 
statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the 

licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the 

 

Page 34



 

 

25 

 

 

Commission under Section 25." 

In accordance with Gambling Commission guidance the council will give weight to 
child protection issues when considering applications for permits. 

The council will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures 
in place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm 
from gambling but includes wider child protection considerations. The council will 
assess these policies and procedures on their merits, however, they may include 
appropriate measures / training for staff as regards suspected truant school children 
on the premises, measures / t raining covering how staff would deal with 
unsupervised children being on the premises, or children causing problems on or 
around the premises. The council will also expect applicants to demonstrate a full 
understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in 
unlicensed FECs, that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out 
in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have a full understanding of 
the maximum stakes and prizes. 

The council is aware that an application for a permit may only be granted if the chief 
officer of police has been consulted on the application. 

In line with the Act the council cannot attach conditions to this type of permit and the 
"Statement of principles" only applies to initial applications and not to renewals 

2. Gaming machine permits in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol 

There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on 
the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. 
The premises merely need to notify the licensing authority. The council can remove 
the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if: 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
licensing objectives; 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of 
the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the licensing 
authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of practice 
issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 
machine has been complied with); 

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 

 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises. 

 

Page 35



 

 

26 

 

 

If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the council must consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under Section 
25 of the Gambling Act 2005, and "such matters as they think relevant." The 
council considers that "such matters" will be decided on a case by case basis but 
generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons 
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 
council that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not 
have access to the adult only gaming machines. 

Measures which will satisfy the council that there will be no access may include the 
adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that 
the machines are not being used by those under 18. Notices and signage may also 
be help. As regards the protection of vulnerable persons applicants may wish to 
consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations 
such as GamCare. 

It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises 
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would most likely 
need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence. 

The council can decide to grant the application with a smaller number of machines 
and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. Conditions (other than 
these) cannot be attached. 

The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine. 

3. Prize Gaming Permits - (Statement of Principles on Permits) 

The council will expect the applicant to set out the types of gaming that he or she is 
intending to offer and be able to demonstrate: 

 that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
Regulations; 

 and that the gaming offered is within the law. 

In making its decision on an application for this permit the council does not need to 

have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling 

 

Page 36



 

 

27 

 

 

Commission guidance. 

There are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which the permit holder must 
comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in 
the Act are: 

 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 
which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played and 
completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the game 
must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played; 

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); 
and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 

Members clubs and miners' welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) may apply 
for a Club Gaming Permit or a Clubs Gaming machines permit. The Club Gaming 
Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of 
categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set-out in 
forthcoming regulations. A Club Gaming machine permit will enable the premises to 
provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D). 

To qualify for club permits members clubs must have at least 25 members and be 
established and conducted "wholly or mainly" for purposes other than gaming, unless 
the gaming is permitted by separate regulations. It is anticipated that this will cover 
bridge and whist clubs, which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968. A 
members' club must be permanent in nature, not established to make commercial 
profit, and controlled by its members equally. Examples include working men' s 
clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations." 

The council may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 

(a) the applicant does not fulfill the requirements for a members' or commercial club 
or miners' welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of 
permit for which it has applied; 

(b) the applicant's premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young 

 

Page 37



 

 

28 

 

 

persons; 
(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 

applicant while providing gaming facilities; 
(d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or 
(e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police. 

There is also a 'fast-track' procedure available under the Act for premises which hold a 
Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast -track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or 
the police, and the grounds upon which an authority can refuse a permit are 
reduced. The grounds on which an application under the process may be refused 
are: 

(a) that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed 
under schedule 12; 
(b) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 

other gaming; or 
(c) that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the 

last ten years has been cancelled." 

There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a category 
B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant 
provision of a code of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines. 

S. Temporary Use Notices 

Temporary use notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no 
premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises 
temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be useful for a 
temporary use notice would include hotels, conference centres and sporting 

venues. 

The Act makes a special reference, in the context of temporary use notices, to a "set 
of premises" to try and ensure that large premises which cannot reasonably be 
viewed as separate are not used for more temporary use notices than permitted 
under the act. The council considers that the determination of what constitutes "a set 
of premises" will be a question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice 
that is given. In considering whether a place falls within the definition of a "set of 
premises", the council will look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation 

and control of the premises. The council will be ready to object to notices where it 

 

Page 38



 

 

29 

 

More information relating to this can be found in the Guidance to licensing authorities 4th 
edition at http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

appears that their effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be 
described as one set of premises. 

6. Occasional Use Notices for tracks 

There is a special provision in the Act which provides that where there is betting on a 
track on eight days or less in a calendar year, betting may be permitted by an 
occasional use notice without the need for a full premises licence. Track operators 
and occupiers need to be aware that the procedure for applying for an occasional use 
notice is different to that for a temporary use notice. 

The council has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from ensuring 
that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded. The council will 
though consider the definition of a 'track' and whether the applicant is permitted to 
avail him/herself of the notice. 

 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



LIC-15-004 

Driver conditions report 23.09.2015  
 

  
 
Name of meeting: Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:   4 November 2015 
 
Title of report: Taxi & Private Hire Licensing – Driver Conditions 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Yes 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director – Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman - 09/09/15 
 
David Smith - 10/09/15 
Debbie Hogg on behalf of 
 
Julie Muscroft - 10/09/15 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Cllr Steve Hall – Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 
 
1 Summary 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to consider a change to the conditions attached to 

the grant of a hackney carriage or private hire drivers’ licence.  
 
2 Background 
2.1 Members may be aware from previous reports that the Council already has 

some conditions regarding expectations of taxi drivers. Attached at appendix 1 
is a copy of the current conditions with the proposed changes tracked for ease 
of reference 

2.2 Following the Jay & Casey reports at Rotherham which estimated that more 
than 1,400 children were abused in Rotherham from 1997-2013, this document 
considers the measures that Kirklees Council have in place before granting a 
drivers licence, to ensure the checks  are fit for purpose. This issue is of 
particular importance because the Casey & Jay Reports both stated that taxi 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



LIC-15-004 

Driver conditions report 23.09.2015  
 

drivers played a "prominent role" in the abuse which had ”significant impact” on 
public confidence in the towns’ drivers. 

2.3 The licensing team are therefore reviewing all their current conditions to ensure 
that they remain fit for purpose and public confidence is maintained. 

3. Current Practice 
3.1 Before an applicant is granted a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s  

Licence they are required to:- 
 

• Undertake an Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service Check which 
highlights any history of criminality. This profession is exempt from the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act and as such none of the information is 
exempt.  Consequently, the Council is able to consider the applicant’s full 
history and note any patterns of behavior/concern.  A rigorous 
standard/policy is then applied to the consideration of any past criminality, 
particularly concerning sexual activity, violence, children, vulnerable adults, 
dishonesty or drug dealing which prevents applicants from becoming a 
licensed if deemed appropriate.   
 

• Undertake a Check with the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA) 
to ensure that they are able to drive and what offences (if any) they may 
have.  

 
• Undertake a DVSA Group Two Medical (this is the same level as that 

required to be a Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) or Public Service Vehicle 
(PSV) Driver.  
 

• Present a Certificate of Good Conduct from the Country where they have 
resided, if they have lived out of the UK for a period of six months or longer 
since the age of ten (the age of criminal responsibility) to prove their 
previous good character. (This is a recommendation from the Jay Report).   

 
• Pass an extended taxi and private hire driving test with the DVSA 

 
• Pass an in-house training course to ensure that they understand a wide 

range of matters including customer care, disability awareness and matters 
relating to cse awareness and adult and child safeguarding. It also tests 
their knowledge on conditions of licence and their ability to communicate 
effectively.  

 
3.2 In addition to the above, there is a strong partnership between the Police and 

the Licensing Authority with co-location and where appropriate, information is 

Page 42



LIC-15-004 

Driver conditions report 23.09.2015  
 

exchanged between parties to prevent an applicant being licensed if it is not in 
the public’s interest to do so. 
 

3.3 In relation to driver licensing, the paramount aim is the safety of the travelling 
public and the safety of the public at large who may be put at risk if the driver is 
unfit to drive such a vehicle.  

 
4. Consultation 
4.1 A full consultation was carried out with the trade by sending trade 

representatives copies of the proposed changes.  Copies were also made 
available at the licensing counters in Huddersfield & Dewsbury. The 
consultation was also posted online on the Councils website and on the 
Licensing facebook page. 

 
 Consultation was also carried out with all elected members of the Council, 

West Yorkshire Police and the School Transport Manager. 
 
           Copies of the responses received are attached at Appendix 2 
 
4.2 As a result of the consultation some further amendments were made to the 

proposed changes which address all but one of the trades concerns. 
 
5 Legal Implications 
5.1 There is a risk of challenge by an aggrieved person to any conditions attached 

to the grant of a licence. However, as consultation has taken place with the 
trade (amongst others) the risk of any challenge will be alleviated. 

 
6. Resource Implications 
6.1 None 
 
7. Officer Recommendations 
7.1 Officers recommend that Members approve the proposed changes and 

authorise the Licensing manager to update the conditions accordingly and 
implement with immediate effect. 

 
8.  Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
 
 

Page 43



LIC-15-004 

Driver conditions report 23.09.2015  
 

9.  Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 
 
Neal Fearns 
Head of Building Control & Licencing 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: neal.fearns@kirklees.gov.uk 

 

Papers: 

Appendix 1: Conditions - Driver 

Appendix 2: Drivers Conditions Responses 

 

10.  Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 

Page 44



KIRKLEES METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 

PART 11 – LICENSING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

STANDARD CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO THE ISSUE OF A HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE 

1. The Driver shall not assign or in any way part with the benefit of the Licence, which is
personal to the Driver.

2. The Driver shall not while driving or in charge of a Private Hire Vehicle:-

(a) tout or solicit on a road or other public place any person to hire or be carried for 
hire in any Private Hire Vehicle 

(b) cause or procure any other person to tout or solicit on a road or other public 
place any on to hire or be carried for hire in any Private Hire Vehicle 

(c) offer that vehicle for immediate hire while the Driver or that vehicle is on a road or 
other public place 

(d) accept an offer for immediate hire of that vehicle while the Driver or that vehicle 
is on a road or other public place except where such an offer is first 
communicated to the Driver by telephone or by apparatus for wireless telegraphy 
fitted to that vehicle 

In this Condition 

“road” means any highway and any other road to which the public has access, 
and includes bridges over which a road passes. 

3. The Driver shall not carry more passengers than allowed by his private hire or hackney
vehicle licence.

4. The Driver shall at all times when driving or acting in accordance with the Driver’s
licence granted to him wear the Driver’s badge issued to the Driver by the Council in
such position and manner as to be plainly and distinctly visible.

5. The Driver’s badge referred to in the foregoing Condition shall remain the property of the
Council, and if the Driver’s licence is not renewed, such badge shall be returned by the
Driver to the Council within 7 days of a notice by the Licensing Manager or Senior
Licensing Officer requesting the Driver to do so or immediately in the case of a
suspension or revocation.

6. A failure to renew a Drivers licence by its expiry date will result in the Drivers badge
lapsing and a driver having to make a fresh application for a new Drivers badge.

7. (Sub-sections (2) to (5) of Section 233 of the Local Government Act 1972, shall have
effect and are incorporated in these Conditions in relation to any notices required or 
authorised by these Conditions to be given or served on the Driver by or on behalf of the 
Council, or by an authorised officer 

APPENDIX 1

Page 45



22.20. The driver shall ensure that at all times when driving a licensed vehicle for hire or reward 
that such a vehicle is kept in a clean and roadworthy condition. 

23.21. The driver must ensure that his ability to drive is not impaired by working excessive 
hours. Guidance can be sought from the Road Transport (Working Time) Regulations 
2005. 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing Manager 
Flint Street 
Fartown 
Huddersfield  
HD1 6LG 

Revised 2015 

Page 46



8.7. The Driver shall at any time or at such intervals as the Council may reasonably require, 
produce a certificate in the form required by the Council, signed by the drivers own 
general practitioner or doctor with access to the drivers medical records to the effect that 
he is or continues to be physically fit to be the driver of a Hackney Carriage or Private 
Hire Vehicle; whether or not such certificate is produced, the person shall, if required by 
the Council at any time, undergo a medical examination by a registered medical 
practitioner to be selected by the Council. 

9.8. The Driver shall at any time or at such intervals as the Council may reasonably require 
be required to pass a driving test carried out by an authorised officer of the Council or 
other body approved by the Council. 

10. (A licence granted by the Council to enable a person to drive a Hackney Carriage or a
Private Hire Vehicle will remain in force for a period of 1 year, unless the Council specify 
a lesser period or revoke or suspend the licence at any time.) REMOVE 

11.9. The Driver shall at all times be clean and respectable in his dress and person, behave in 
a civil and orderly manner and afford all reasonable assistance with passengers’ 
luggage and comply with all reasonable requirements of any person hiring or being 
conveyed in the vehicle. 

12. The Driver shall, within 7 days, disclose to the Council in writing, details of any arrest
whether charged or not, or any police investigation into his/her conduct. The Driver will
also disclose to the Council in writing details of any conviction or caution imposed on him
during the period of the Licence.  , any arrest whether charged or not, or any police
investigation into his/her conduct.

10. 
13.11. The Driver shall, within 7 days, notify the Council in writing of any change in his/her 

name address or phone number taking place during the period of the Licence. 

14.12. The Driver shall not without the consent of the Hirer convey or permit to be conveyed 
any other person in that vehicle. 

15.13. The driver shall take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers entering or 
leaving the vehicle 

16.14. The driver of a wheelchair accessible vehicle must ensure that any equipment 
associated with the carriage of wheelchair users must be in good order and ready for 
immediate use and that he is able to use such equipment in the correct manner. 

17.15. The driver of a licensed vehicle shall ensure that a current copy of the vehicles 
insurance is carried in the vehicle at all times. 

18.16. The driver of a licensed vehicle shall, at the request of an authorised officer, stop the 
vehicle to enable a check to be made for the purpose of preventing or detecting any 
contravention of any statutory requirements, or of the conditions, applicable to the 
vehicle and its use as a licensed vehicle whether or not passengers are carried at the 
time. It shall not proceed until the authorised officer is satisfied that all such 
requirements or conditions are being observed and complied with. 

19.17. The driver shall if required provide a written receipt for the fare paid. 

20.18. The driver shall declare to the Council any penalty points endorsed on his licence or any 
courses attended in relation to driving offences. 

21.19. The driver must carry any assistance dog or guide dog with no extra charge that is 
accompanying a passenger unless he is in possession of an exemption certificate. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at:
1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0 cm
+ Tab after:  1.27 cm + Indent at: 
1.27 cm

Page 47



APPENIX 2

Page 48

ValentinaAbe
Text Box
APPENDIX 2



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



LIC-15-003 

Report vehicle age policy2015.docx 

  
 
Name of meeting:  Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:    4 November 2015 
 
Title of report:   Licensed Vehicle Age Limits & Insurance total loss 

vehicles (write offs) 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Not Applicable 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director – Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman – 06/10/15 
 
David Smith - 10/09/15 
Debbie Hogg on behalf of  
 
 Julie Muscroft - 10/09/15 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Cllr Steve Hall - Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 

1 Summary 

1.1 To consider the existing Licensed Vehicle Age Policy and the licensing of 
vehicles previously written off and decide whether the current policy should 
be amended. 

2 Introduction 

2.1 Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles have a specific role to play in an 
integrated transport system. They are able to provide services in situations 
where other public transport is either not available (for example in rural 
areas, or outside “normal” hours of operation such as in the evenings or on 
Sundays), or for those with mobility difficulties. It is vitally important that the 
provision of a professional and respected hackney carriage and private hire 
trade is maintained, by continued partnership working with the trade and 
also by monitoring and implementing improvements of the required 
standards of service. 

2.2 Licensing Authorities have a wide range of discretion over the types of 
vehicle that they can licence as hackney carriages or private hire vehicles. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



LIC-15-003 

Report vehicle age policy2015.docx 

The Department of Transports Best Practice Guidance suggests that local 
Licensing Authorities should adopt the principle of specifying as many 
different types of vehicle as possible. Authorities are encouraged to leave it 
open to the trade to put forward vehicles of their own choice which can be 
shown to meet basic criteria. In that way, emerging new designs for vehicles 
can be readily taken into account.  

3.0 Purpose of the Age Policy 

3.1 The Council is empowered to impose such conditions, as it considers 
reasonably necessary, in relation to the grant of a hackney carriage or 
private hire vehicle licence. Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles 
provide a necessary service to the public, so it is appropriate to set 
standards for the external and internal condition of the vehicles, provided 
that the standards are reasonable and proportionate. It has long been the 
case that Kirklees have imposed limits on the age of vehicles it will licence. 

3.2 Kirklees Council currently works to the following criteria on vehicle age limits 
for licensed vehicles. 

1. Applications for Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicles are 
considered for first licensing up to six years of age.  

2. Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicles over ten years of age will be 
refused further licences.  

3. That an exemption to the maximum age limit of ten years will be 
applied to London cab type vehicles, the maximum age for such 
vehicle will be indefinite provided that on attaining fifteen years they 
are compliance tested twice a year.  

4. Than an exemption to the maximum age limit of ten years will be 
applied to wheelchair accessible vehicles used for Hackney Carriage 
or Private Hire purposes to be licensed to a maximum of twelve 
years.  

 
3.3 A request has been received from the taxi trade asking for the age limit for 

first licensed vehicles and the upper age limit on currently licensed vehicles 
to be increased. Copies of trade representations can be found at Appendix 
2. 

 
4 Vehicle Age & Other Criteria  

4.1 Whilst our current age policy has operated with little or no issues, it is 
perfectly possible for an older vehicle to be in good condition. The DOT Best 
Practice Guidance suggests that the setting of an age limit beyond which a 
local authority will not licence vehicles may be arbitrary and inappropriate. 
But a greater frequency of testing may be appropriate for older vehicles - for 
example, twice-yearly tests for vehicles of more than a certain age.  

4.2 In addition to compliance testing the physical condition of a licensed vehicle 
is an important criteria used when assessing the suitability of a vehicle. In 
exceptional circumstances a licence may not be renewed if the physical 
appearance of the vehicle is not of a suitable standard despite having 
passed a Compliance test.  

4.3 Currently Kirklees licensed vehicles have a mandatory yearly compliance 
test. This ensures that the vehicle is of the required standard. Any vehicle 
which fails its annual compliance test because of poor maintenance is 
required to undergo a further compliance test at the 6 month stage.  

Page 74



LIC-15-003 

Report vehicle age policy2015.docx 

4.4 At present Kirklees Council will grant a new licence to a vehicle that is either 
a Cat C or Cat D insurance losses write off. For the benefit of members an 
explanation of the Category loss codes is attached to this report at appendix 
one. The granting of a licence to a vehicle that is a Cat C write off is subject 
to the prospective licence holder obtaining a certificate of repair from 
Autolign. An explanation of the Autolign checks are also attached at 
appendix one. 

5 Next Steps 

5.1 The Committee is asked to consider the current policy. A bench marking 
exercise across a number of other licensing authorities has also been done 
to ascertain what if any age criteria on vehicles are applied in those 
authorities.  Appendix 2 

6 Officer Recommendations 

6.1   Officers would recommend that members do not make any changes at this 
time as this matter is one of those being looked at by the licensing group 
from the Combined Authority region. It would be more appropriate to 
reconsider the issue once an agreed approach across the region has been 
reached. 

7 Resource Implications  

7.1 If a decision was made to increase/remove the age limit there would be a 
need for an increased use of officer time for inspections & assessment of 
vehicle suitability.   

 
8      Legal Implications  

8.1 None 

 
7.     Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
7.1   Cllr Hall notes the pressure from the trade but would like to see a decision    

deferred for the outcome of the Combined Authority work and recommends 
that the matter be reviewed in April or May of 2016.  

 
8.  Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 
 
Papers:  
Appendix 1: Age Policy 
Appendix 2: Trade Reps Age Policy 

 
9.  Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



LIC-15-002 

Assessment Criteria & Convictions Policy 2014 
 

  
 
Name of meeting:  Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:   4 November 2015 
 
Title of report:   Assessment Criteria and Convictions Policy for Licensed 

Drivers (1) 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Not Applicable 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director - Legal & Governance? 
 

Jacqui Gedman - 09/09/15 
 
David Smith - 10/09/15 
Debbie Hogg on behalf of  
 
Julie Muscroft - 10/09/15 
 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Cllr Steve Hall – Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 

1 Summary 

1.1 To consider the revision of the Policy on the relevance of criminal conduct, 
unsavoury conduct and complaints against Licence Holders and Applicants 
for licences. 

 

2 Introductions 

2.1 Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles have a specific role to play in an 
integrated transport system. They are able to provide services in situations 
where other public transport is either not available (for example in rural 
areas, or outside “normal” hours of operation such as in the evenings or on 
Sundays), or for those with mobility difficulties. 

2.2  It is vitally important that the provision of a professional and respected 
hackney carriage and private hire trade is maintained, by continued 
partnership working with the trade and also by monitoring and implementing 
improvements of the required standards of service. 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 10



LIC-15-002 

Assessment Criteria & Convictions Policy 2014 
 

3 Background 

3.1 Kirklees Council adopted the policy at the last Licensing & Safety Committee 
on October 15th 2014. First revisions were made in February 2015. 

3.2 The Licensing regime exists to ensure that the safety of the public is 
protected. As a result it is necessary for the Council to have a robust 
assessment criteria and convictions policy that adequately deals with any 
issue that might undermine the safety of the public.  

 
3.3 Members may recall that the policy is a live working document and would be 

kept under constant review. After almost 12 months in use a number of 
matters have been added to the policy for clarification of some issues and to 
add some further offences and to also make the document more user 
friendly.  

 
3.4 A copy of the revised Policy (changes tracked for ease of reference) is 

attached at Appendix 1. 
 
3.5 Members may be pleased to know that the policy was the subject of judicial 

examination this year in the case of Kirklees Council –v- Singh 2015. HHJ 
Brown sitting with lay justices described the policy as “sensible and 
balanced”. 

 
4 Proposals 
4.1 By virtue of section 59 (1) (a) (in relation to hackney carriage drivers 

licences) and section 51 (1) (a) (in relation to private hire drivers licences) of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 a Council shall 
not grant a licence ‘unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and 
proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.  

 
4.2 What constitutes fit and proper is not defined in the Town Police Clauses Act 

1847 or the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. It is for 
the Licensing Authority to determine whether an applicant or driver is fit and 
proper based on the information presented and having regard to the 
following:  

• The rules of natural justice  
• The Human Rights Act 1998  
• Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
• The Council’s own Conditions, By-laws and Policies 

 
4.3 Members must consider each application on its own merit in light of the 

Council’s policies. However, the Licensing Authority must not apply its 
policies in such a way as to fetter its discretion.  

 
4.4 The overriding concern for any decision-maker must be the protection and 

the safety of the public. The Policy brings clarity for the benefit of applicants 
and decision-makers, and explains that the Licensing Authority will deal with 
cautions and other sanctions in a similar way to convictions. 

 
4.5 The Department for Transport’s best practice guide to Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire licensing issued in Mach 2010 states the following in 
respect of criminal records checks:  

 

Page 88



LIC-15-002 

Assessment Criteria & Convictions Policy 2014 
 

‘A criminal record check is an important safety measure particularly for those 
working closely with children and the vulnerable... An Enhanced Disclosure 
may also include any other information held in police records that is 
considered relevant by the police, for example, details of minor offences, non-
conviction information on the Police National Computer such as Fixed Penalty 
Notices and, in some cases, allegations...  

 
In considering an individual’s criminal record, local licensing authorities will 
want to consider each case on its merits, but they should take a particularly 
cautious view of any offences involving violence, and especially sexual attack. 
In order to achieve consistency, and thus avoid the risk of successful legal 
challenge, local authorities will doubtless want to have a clear policy for the 
consideration of criminal records, for example the number of years they will 
require to have elapsed since the commission of particular kinds of 
offences...’ 
 

4.7 It can be seen that the Policy has been written following the advice in the 
Best Practise Guide. 

 
 

5. Resource Implications 
5.1 A consistent and considered use of the Policy is likely to have savings on 

Panel time as applying the Policy at the application point should reduce the 
number of referrals to Regulatory Panel.  

 
 

6. Officer Recommendations 
6.1 The Licensing Committee is requested to consider the revised policy and 

authorise the Licensing Manager to implement its use by officers and 
Elected Members sitting on the Regulatory Panel effective immediately.   

 
7.  Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  

Cllr Hall recommends adoption of the policy to the Council 
 
8.  Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers:  

Appendix 1: Revised Assessment Criteria & Convictions Policy  
 
9.  Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 89



 
 
 
 

 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE 
HIRE LICENCES  

 
A Policy on the Relevance of Criminal Conduct, Improper 

Behaviour and Complaints against Licence Holders and Applicants 
for Licences. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

Page 90



Taxi and PHV Licensing Criminal Convictions’ Policy 
 

1. Introduction 
The public are entitled to have the utmost confidence in drivers of taxis and private hire vehicles: 
therefore, the Council must ensure that only fit and proper persons obtain drivers’ and operator 
licences. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance on the criteria taken into account by the Licensing 
Authority when determining whether or not an applicant or an existing licence holder is a fit and 
proper person to hold a hackney carriage and/or private hire driver or operator licence. 
 
The overriding aim of the Licensing Authority is to protect the safety of the public. 
 
The Licensing Authority is concerned to ensure: 

• That a person is a fit and proper person 
• That the person does not pose a threat to the public 
• That the public are safeguarded from dishonest persons 
• The safeguarding of children, young people and vulnerable adults. 

 
In this scheme “safeguarding “ means  the protection of children or vulnerable adults from  harm to  
their health ,safety , well-being or development and “safeguarding concern”  means  grounds to 
believe that the individual applicant or driver may not be a fit and proper person because grant , 
retention or renewal  of a licence may  risk such harm occurring. Vulnerable adult has the meaning 
as in section 59 of the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 
 
This policy provides guidance to any person with an interest in taxi and private hire licensing. In 
particular, but not exclusively: 

• Applicants for drivers’ licences 
• Existing licensed drivers whose licences are being reviewed 
• Councillors 
• Licensing officers 
• Legal officers 
• Magistrates hearing appeals against local authority decisions 

 
For renewal applications and current licence holders the policy will not be applied retrospectively.  
However, the Policy will be applied to renewal and current licence holders if any additional 
convictions, cautions or complaints are incurred or brought to the attention of the Council that 
along with the historical information would call into question a person’s suitability to hold a licence. 
 
Where licensing officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they will utilise these guidelines 
when making a decision to grant a licence. Whilst officers will have regard to the guidelines 
contained in the policy, each case will be considered on its individual merits and where the 
circumstances demand, the officer may pass the matter to the Councils Regulatory Committee.   
 
All licences are issued with a set of Conditions which the licence holder must comply with. By-laws 
are also in place in relation to Hackney Carriage Drivers. Copies are attached to every licence and 
are available on request. A repeated breach of licensed driver and or licensed vehicle conditions 
and or by-laws may also lead to a person having his hackney carriage/private hire driver licence 
suspended or revoked.  
 
2. General policy 

2 
 

Page 91



There may be occasions where it is appropriate to depart from the guidelines, for example where 
the offence is a one-off occasion or there are exceptional mitigating circumstances or alternatively 
where there are many or continuous offences or complaints which may show a pattern of offending 
and unfitness. 
 
A person with a conviction for a serious offence need not be automatically barred from obtaining a 
licence, but would normally be expected to: 
 

• Remain free of conviction for an appropriate period; AND show adequate evidence that he 
or she is a fit and proper person to hold a licence (the onus is on the applicant to produce 
such evidence). Simply remaining free of conviction may not generally be regarded as 
adequate evidence that a person is a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 

 
Where an applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence, the Licensing Authority cannot 
review the merits of the conviction [Nottingham City Council v. Mohammed Farooq (1998)]. 
 
It is the responsibility of the applicant/licence holder to satisfy the Licensing Authority that they are 
a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold a licence. The applicant/licence holder must ensure that all 
convictions, cautions, warnings, reprimands, fixed penalties, arrests and summonses are disclosed 
to the Council. 
 
 
3. Appeals 
Any applicant refused a driver’s licence on the grounds that the Licensing Authority is not satisfied 
he is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence has a right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 
within 21 days of the notice of refusal.  
 
4. Powers 
Section 61 and Section 62 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 allow the 
Licensing Authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a licence if the application/licence holder 
has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency, violence; failure to comply with 
the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; failure to comply with the provisions of Part II 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; or any other reasonable cause. 
 
The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)(Amendment) Order 2002, allows the 
Licensing Authority to take into account all convictions recorded against an applicant or the holder 
of a private hire vehicle or hackney carriage driver’s licence, whether spent or not. Therefore the 
Licensing Authority will have regard to all relevant convictions, particularly where there is a long 
history of offending or a recent pattern of repeat offending. 
 
In this policy the term “disqualification” refers to the period served, in order to take account of the 
fact that a court may reduce the period of disqualification from driving. An applicant must provide 
evidence in advance to prove that the court agreed a reduction in the period of disqualification. 
 
5. Consideration of disclosed criminal history 
Under the provisions of Sections 51, 55, and 59, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, the Licensing Authority is required to ensure that an applicant for the grant or renewal of a 
hackney carriage and/or a private hire vehicle drivers’ licence and/or private hire vehicle operator’s 
licence is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a licence. However, if an applicant has any 
convictions, warnings, cautions or charges awaiting trial, the Licensing Authority will look into: 
 

• How relevant the offence(s) are to the licence being applied for 

3 
 

Page 92



• How serious the offence(s) were 
• When the offence(s) were committed 
• The date of conviction 
• Circumstances of the individual concerned 
• Sentence imposed by the court 
• The applicant’s age at the time of conviction 
• Whether they form part of a pattern of offending 
• Any other character check considered reasonable (e.g. personal references) 
• Any other factors that might be relevant 

 
Existing holders of drivers’ licenses are required to notify the Licensing Authority in writing within 
seven days of receiving a driving licence endorsement, fixed penalty notice or criminal conviction 
(including cautions). 
 
Applicants can discuss further what effect a caution/conviction may have on any application by 
contacting a licensing officer in confidence for advice. 
 
The Licensing Authority conducts enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure & Barring Service 
(DBS) formerly the Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) of any applicant for a driver licence. The 
Licensing Authority follows the DBS’s Code of Practice on the fair use of disclosure information. A 
copy is available on request. 
 
Applicants applying for the grant or a renewal of a drivers’ licence will be required to obtain an 
enhanced disclosure at their expense. The Licensing Authority abides by the DBS’s Policy on the 
secure storage, handling, use, retention and disposal of disclosure information, which is available 
on request. 
 
More information about the DBS can be found on their website at   
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/disclosure-and-barring-service 
 
 
The Licensing Authority is also entitled to use other records and information including any 
complaints history that may be available to it in determining applications or an entitlement to 
continue holding a licence. This may include information held by the Licensing Authority or other 
Licensing Authorities, and information disclosed by the police under the Home Office scheme for 
reporting offences committed by notifiable occupations. 
 
DBS disclosures will not include details of any foreign convictions or cautions unless they have 
been recorded on the UK National Computer. Any applicant who has resided outside the UK for 
any period longer than 3 months within the preceding 3 years will be required to produce a 
“Certificate of Good Conduct” from the relevant countries which details any cautions or convictions 
arising against the applicant while resident in that country. It shall be the applicant’s responsibility 
to obtain this documentary evidence and to bear the costs of such. The requirement is in addition 
to the DBS disclosure.  
 
Where an applicant is unable to obtain the above, a discussion will take place with the licensing 
manager to ascertain what alternative evidence should be provided. This may include character 
references from appropriate individuals or other bodies as to the applicants conduct whilst resident 
in the other country. 
 

Formatted: Font color: Blue

4 
 

Page 93



If character references are supplied the referee must have known the person applying for at least 5 
years if they are a friend, neighbour or colleague. If the referee is a professional, i.e. teacher, 
solicitor etc then they must have known the person for at least 2 years. 
 
The referee cannot be closely related to the applicant, in a relationship or live at the same address 
as the person applying.  
 
Non-conviction information 
If an applicant has, on one or more occasions, been arrested or charged, but not convicted, for a 
serious offence which suggests he could be a danger to the public, consideration should be given 
to refusing the application. Such offences would include but is not limited to serious violent 
offences, offences involving child sexual exploitation and sex offences.  
 
The Licensing Authority considers cases to the civil burden of proof i.e. a “balance of 
probabilities” and is able to make a decision on the alleged offences regardless of whether 
a criminal conviction followed the offence.  
 
In assessing the action to take, the safety of the travelling public must be the paramount concern. 
 
 
It is an offence for any person knowingly or recklessly to make a false declaration or to omit any 
material particular in giving information required by the application for a licence. Where an 
applicant has made a false statement or a false declaration on their application for the grant or 
renewal of a licence, the licence will normally be refused. 
 
The following lists are not exhaustive and any offences not covered by this Policy will not prevent 
the Licensing Authority from taking into account those offences. The seriousness of the offence 
and sentence imposed will be considered in making a determination of the application.  
 
6. Sex and indecency offences 
As licensed drivers often carry unaccompanied and vulnerable passengers, applicants with 
convictions for sexual offences must be closely scrutinised. Those with convictions for the more 
serious sexual offences will normally be refused. For other offences, applicants will be expected to 
show a substantial period (normally at least 5 years) free of conviction for such offences before a 
licence will be granted. 
 
No period is thought appropriate to have elapsed and an application will normally be refused where 
the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as: 
 

• Rape 
• Assault by penetration 
• Sexual offences involving children, young persons or vulnerable adults 
• Sexual Assault 
• Indecent assault 
• Abuse of position of trust 
• Familial child sex offences 
• Female circumcision 
• Female genital mutilation 
• Possession of indecent photographs of children 
• Abuse of children and young persons through prostitution or pornography 
• Trafficking for sexual exploitation 
• Preparatory offences 

5 
 

Page 94



• Any sexual offence committed in the course of taxi or private hire work 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
 
Before an application is allowed, an applicant should be free of conviction for at least 10 years (or 
at least 3 years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is longer), if 
he/she has a conviction for an offence such as: 
 

• Exploitation of prostitution 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
Before a licence is granted, an applicant should be free of conviction for at least 5 years (or at least 
3 years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is longer), if he/she 
has a conviction for an offence such as: 
 

• Indecent exposure 
• Soliciting (kerb crawling) 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
In addition to the above the Licensing Authority will not grant a licence to any applicant who is 
currently on the Sex Offenders Register. 
 
A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a sex or 
indecency offence. 
 
7. Offences against Children 
 
No period is thought appropriate to have elapsed and an application will normally be refused where 
the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as: 
 

• Sexual activity with a child 
• Causing or inciting a child to engage in sexual activity 
• Causing a child to watch a sexual act 
• Sexual activity in the presence of a child 
• Arranging or facilitating child prostitution or pornography 
• Arranging or facilitating commission of a child sexual offence 
• Meeting a child following sexual grooming etc. 
• Possession of indecent photographs of children 
• Grooming of children for sexual exploitation 
• Trafficking of children for sexual exploitation 
• Supplying or offering to supply Class A drugs to a child 
• Voyeurism 

 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence of similar 
offence(s) which replace the offences below and the conviction is less than 10 years prior to the 
date of application: 
 

• Neglect of a child 

6 
 

Page 95



• Child cruelty 
• Abandonment of a child 
• Drunk in charge of a child 
• Under the influence of drugs in charge of a child 
• Exposing a child to risk 

 
 
 
 
 
8. Serious offences involving violence 
Licensed drivers have close regular contact with the public. A firm line is to be taken with those 
who have convictions for offences involving violence. An application will normally be refused if the 
applicant has a conviction for an offence that involved the loss of life. 
 
In other cases anyone of a violent disposition will normally be refused to be licensed until at least 3 
years free of such conviction. However, given the range of the offences that involve violence, 
consideration must be given to the nature of the conviction. 
 
Unless there are truly exceptional circumstances a licence will not normally be granted where the 
applicant has a conviction for an offence such as: 
 

• Murder 
• Manslaughter 
• Infanticide 
• Child destruction 
• Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving 
• Terrorism offences 
• Kidnapping or abduction 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence of similar 
offence(s) which replace the offences below and the conviction is less than 10 years prior to the 
date of application: 
 

• Arson 
• Malicious wounding or grievous bodily harm which is racially aggravated 
• Actual bodily harm which is racially aggravated 
• Grievous bodily harm with intent (s18 Offences Against the Person Act 1861) 
• Grievous bodily harm (s20 Offences Against the Person Act 1861) 
• Robbery (armed or otherwise) 
• Possession or distribution of prohibited weapon or firearm 
• Riot 
• Common assault with racially aggravated features 
• Violent disorder 
• Threats to kill 
• Any HATE motivated crime 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 

7 
 

Page 96



A licence will not normally be granted where  the applicant has a conviction for one of the offences 
listed below  or  for an offence which replaces  or is broadly equivalent to the offences listed  below 
and the conviction is less than 5 years prior to the date of application: 

 
• Racially-aggravated criminal damage 
• Racially-aggravated offences 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for one of the offences 
listed below or for an offence which replaces or is broadly equivalent to the offences listed  below 
and the conviction is less than 3 years prior to the date of application: 

 
• Common assault  
• Assault occasioning actual bodily harm 
• Assaulting a Police Officer 
• Affray 
• S5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress) 
• S4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence) 
• S4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or distress) 
• Harassment 
• Obstruction 
• Criminal damage 
• Violent disorder 
• Resisting arrest 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction in the last 10 
years for an offence of a violent nature. 
 
In the event of a licence being granted, a strict warning both verbally and in writing should be 
administered. 
 
9. Driving offences involving the loss of life 
A very serious view is to be taken of any applicant who has been convicted of a driving offence 
that resulted in the loss of life. 
 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for: 
 

• Causing death by dangerous driving 
• Causing death by careless driving whilst under the influence of drink or drugs 
• Causing death by driving while unlicensed, disqualified or uninsured 
• Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above 
 
Before a licence is granted, an applicant should be free of conviction for 10 years (or at least 3 
years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is longer), if he has a 
conviction for: 
 

8 
 

Page 97



• Causing death by careless driving 
 

 
10. Possession of a weapon 
If an applicant has been convicted of possession of a weapon or possession of a firearm or any 
other weapon related offence, this will give serious concern as to whether the person is fit to carry 
the public. 
 
Depending on the circumstances of the offence, an applicant should be free of conviction for 3 
years (or at least 3 years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is 
longer), before a licence is granted. 
 
11. Dishonesty 
A licensed PHV or taxi driver is expected to be a trustworthy person. They deal with cash 
transactions and valuable property may be left in their vehicles. All drivers are required to deposit 
such property with either the Licensing Authority or the police within 24 hours. The widespread 
practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that business people  
place in licensed drivers. Moreover, it is comparatively easy for a dishonest driver to defraud the 
public by demanding more than the legal or agreed fare, etc. 
 
Overseas visitors can be confused by our currency and may be vulnerable to an unscrupulous 
driver. For all these reasons, a serious view is taken of any conviction involving dishonesty. 
 
In general, a minimum period of 3 years free of conviction or at least 3 years from completion of 
sentence (whichever is longer) should be required before granting a licence. The more serious the 
offence the longer the period free of conviction should be. Offences involving dishonesty include: 
 

• theft 
• burglary 
• fraud 
• benefit fraud 
• handling or receiving stolen goods 
• forgery 
• conspiracy to defraud 
• obtaining money or property by deception 
• deception designed to obtain a pecuniary advantage 
• other deception 
• taking a vehicle without consent 
• or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which 

replace the above. 
• perverting the course of justice 

 
12. Drugs 
A serious view is taken of any drug related offence. The nature and quantity of the drugs, whether 
for personal use or supply are issues which should be considered. 
 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence related to 
the supply of or cultivation of drugs and has not been free of conviction for 10 years. 
 
A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has more than one conviction for 
offences related to the possession of drugs and has not been free of conviction for 5 years. 
 

9 
 

Page 98



An application from an applicant who has an isolated conviction for an offence related to the 
possession of drugs within the last 3-5 years may be granted a licence, but consideration should 
be given to the nature and quantity of the drugs. 
 
If there is evidence of persistent drugs use, misuse or dependency a specialist medical 
examination (in accordance with DVLA Group 2 medical standards) may be required before the 
licence is granted. If the applicant was an addict then they would normally be required to show 
evidence of 5 years free from drug taking after detoxification treatment. 
 
13. Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs 
As licensees are professional vocational drivers, a serious view is taken of convictions for driving, 
or being in charge of a vehicle while under the influence of drink or drugs. Provided that a period of 
2 years has elapsed since conviction an isolated incident would not necessarily debar an applicant 
from proceeding with an application but he should be warned as to the significant risk to his licence 
status in the event of re-offending. 
 
More than one conviction for these offences raises significant doubts as to the applicant's fitness to 
drive the public. At least 57 years, after the restoration of the driving licence following a second 
conviction for driving or being in charge of a vehicle whilst under the influence of drink or drugs 
should elapse before an application will be considered. If there is any suggestion that the applicant 
is alcohol or drug dependent, a satisfactory special medical report must be provided before the 
application can be allowed to proceed. 
 
14. Outstanding charges or summonses 
If the individual is the subject of an outstanding charge or summons their application may in some 
circumstances continue to be processed, but the application will need to be reviewed at the 
conclusion of proceedings.  
 
Where information is received through the Notifiable Occupations Scheme on existing licence 
holders, consideration will be given to the information in accordance with this policy.  
 
If the outstanding charge or summons involves a serious offence and the individual’s conviction 
history indicates a possible pattern of unlawful behaviour or character trait, then in the interests of 
public safety the application may be put on hold until proceedings are concluded or the licence 
may be refused. Existing drivers may have their licence suspended or revoked. 
 
A suspension or revocation of the licence of a driver normally takes effect at the end of the period 
of 21 days beginning with the day on which notice is given to the driver. If it appears that the 
interests of public safety require the suspension or revocation of the licence to have immediate 
effect, and the notice given to the driver includes a statement that is so and an explanation why, 
the suspension or revocation takes effect when the notice is given to the driver.  
 
This section includes applicants or licensees who may be subject to police bail having been 
arrested for an offence and who is currently under investigation. 
 
 
15. Cautions 
Admission of guilt is required before a caution can be issued. Every case will be considered on its 
own merits including the details and nature of the offence. 
 
16. Licensing offences 

10 
 

Page 99



Certain offences under taxi legislation such as plying for hire, overcharging and refusing to carry 
disabled persons or assistance dogs would normally prevent a licence being granted or renewed 
until a period of 3 years has passed since conviction. 
 
17. Complaints 
We can take action up to and including suspension and revocation of a drivers licence if a 
complaint is made which suggests a driver’s fitness & propriety is undermined This may be for a 
number of reasons including but not limited to the following: 

• misconduct 
• any behaviour, action or negligence impacting on customer safety 
• driving standards 
• physical or mental ill-health 
• lack of the necessary knowledge of English language to be able to perform the role of a 

licensed driver safely. 
• Mischarging  
• Inappropriate or aggressive behaviour 

 
The number and type of complaint(s) will be given consideration to and a driver’s history will be 
examined to ascertain whether there have been previous complaints. Except in the most serious of 
cases, a driver will be given an opportunity to respond to the complaint before any action is taken.   
 
18. Insurance offences 
A serious view will be taken of convictions of driving or being in charge of a vehicle without 
insurance. An isolated incident in the past will not necessarily stop a licence being granted 
provided he/she has been free of conviction for 3 years; however strict warning should be given as 
to future behaviour. More than one conviction for these offences would normally prevent a licence 
being granted or renewed. 
 
At least three years should elapse (after the restoration of the DVLA driving licence), before a 
licence would normally be granted for a hackney carriage or private hire drivers licence. An 
operator found guilty of aiding and abetting the driving of passengers for hire and reward whilst 
without insurance will have his operators’ licence revoked immediately and prevented from holding 
a licence for three years. 
 
19. Licenses issued by other Licensing Authorities 
 Applicants who hold a licence with one Licensing Authority should not automatically assume that 
their application will be granted by another. Each case will be decided on its own merits. 
 
20. Suspensions / Revocations 
A licence will be suspended by an Officer of the Council, with immediate effect, in the interest of 
public safety, in the following circumstances: 
 

• a person is charged with a serious offence 
• a person is under investigation for serious offences 
• a person is deemed by a qualified general practitioner that the individual is unfit to drive to 

Group 2 Medical Standards 
• a person after experiencing a change in medical condition fails to provide proof of his/her 

fitness to drive to Group 2 Medical Standards 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.69 cm,
Outline numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: Bullet + Aligned at: 
0.63 cm + Tab after:  1.27 cm +
Indent at:  1.27 cm

11 
 

Page 100



• a person fails to provide a valid photo card DVLA driving licence, on request 
 
A licence will be revoked by an Officer of the Council with immediate effect in the interest of public 
safety in the following circumstances: 

• a person’s ordinary Road Traffic Act Driving licence is revoked or suspended 
• a person is disqualified from driving for any period of time 

 
21. Summary 
To summarise, a criminal history in itself may not automatically result in refusal and a current 
conviction for a serious crime need not bar an applicant permanently from becoming licensed. As 
the preceding paragraphs indicate, in most cases, an applicant would be expected to remain free 
from conviction for 3 to 10 years, according to circumstances, before an application can be 
considered. However, there may be occasions when an application can be allowed before 3 years 
free from conviction have elapsed. 
 
Any person who has committed an offence and has to wait before an application is positively 
considered is more likely to value their licence and act accordingly. 
 
While it is possible that an applicant may have a number of convictions that, individually, do not 
meet the above guidelines, the overall offending history must be considered when assessing an 
applicant’s suitability to be licensed. A series of offences over a period of time is more likely to give 
cause for concern than an isolated minor conviction. Obviously some discretion can be afforded if 
an offence disclosed is isolated and there are mitigating circumstances, but the overriding 
consideration is the protection of the public. 
 
Before a decision is made to refuse or revoke a licence a meeting will be held in order to afford an 
applicant or existing driver an opportunity to put their case. 
 
In the Council’s view this statement and the guidelines that follow are compatible with the rights and 
freedoms under the European Convention on Human Rights. 
 
This policy will be continuously monitored and, if necessary, a review will be undertaken. 
 
22. Motoring offences and penalty points 
 
The following is a guide to the number of penalty points a court may impose, it does not reflect the 
fact that some offences may incur a disqualification. These codes are recorded from information 
supplied by the courts (accurate at the time of this document). 
 
Existing drivers who have accumulated 9 or more points on their DVLA driving licence will have 
their private hire/hackney carriage driver licence suspended, until the driver has successfully 
undertaken a private hire or hackney carriage DSA driving test, at their own expense. 
 
New applicants are required, as part of the application process, to undertake a DSA driving test 
and therefore will be able to satisfy the Council of their driving ability. 
 
Code Offence Penalty Points 
 
Accident Offences 

• AC10 Failing to stop after an accident 5-10 
• AC20 Failing to give particulars or to report an accident within 24 hours 5-10 
• AC30 Undefined accident offences 4-9 

12 
 

Page 101



     
Disqualified Driver 

• BA10 Driving whilst disqualified by order of court 6                                    
• BA30 Attempting to driver while disqualified by order of court 6 

 
Careless Driving 

• CD10 Driving without due care and attention 3-9 
• CD20 Driving without reasonable consideration for other road users 3-9 
• CD30 Driving without due care and attention or without reasonable consideration for other 

road  users 3-9 
• CD40 Causing death through careless driving when unfit through drink 3-11 
• CD50 Causing death by careless driving when unfit through drugs 3-11 
• CD60 Causing death by careless driving with alcohol level above the limit 3-11 
• CD70 Causing death by careless driving then failing to supply a specimen for analysis 3-11 
• CD71 Causing death by careless driving then failing to supply A specimen for drug analysis 

3-11 
• CD80 Causing death by careless, or inconsiderate, driving 3-11 
• CD90 Causing death by driving: unlicensed, disqualified or Uninsured drivers 3-11 

 
Construction & Use Of Offences 

• CU10 Using a vehicle with defective brakes 3 
• CU20 Causing or likely to cause danger by reason of use of unsuitable vehicles or using a 

vehicle with parts or accessories (excluding brakes, steering or tyres) in a dangerous 
condition 3 

• CU30 Using a vehicle with defective tyre(s) 3 
• CU40 Using a vehicle with defective steering 3 
• CU50 Causing or likely to cause danger by reason of load or passengers 3 
• CU80 Using a mobile phone while driving a vehicle 3 

 
Dangerous Driving 

• DD40 Dangerous Driving 3-11 
• DD60 Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving a vehicle 3-11 
• DD90 Furious Driving 3-9 

 
Drink or Drugs 

• DR10 Driving or attempting to drive with alcohol level above limit 3-11 
• DR20 Driving or attempting to drive while unfit through drink 3-11 
• DR30 Driving or attempting to drive then failing to supply a specimen for analysis 3-11 
• DR40 In charge of a vehicle while alcohol level above limit 10 
• DR50 In charge of vehicle while unfit through drink 10 
• DR60 Failure to provide a specimen for analysis in circumstances other than driving or 

attempting to drive 10 
• DR61 Failure to supply a specimen for drug analysis in circumstances other than driving or 

attempting to drive 10 
• DR70 Failing to provide specimen for breath test 4 
• DR80 Driving or attempting to drive when unfit through drugs 3-11 
• DR90 In charge of a vehicle when unfit though drugs 3-11 

 
Insurance Offences 

• IN10 Using a vehicle uninsured against third party risks 6-8 
 
Licence Offences 

13 
 

Page 102



• LC20 Driving otherwise than in accordance with the licence 3-6 
• LC30 Driving after making a false declaration about fitness when applying for a licence 3-6 
• LC40 Driving a vehicle having failed to notify a disability 3-6 
• LC50 Driving after a licence has been revoked or refused on medical ground 3-6 

 
Miscellaneous Offences 

• MS10 Leaving a vehicle in a dangerous position 3 
• MS20 Unlawful pillion riding 3 
• MS30 Play street offences 2 
• MS50 Motor racing on the highway 3-11 
• MS60 Offences not covered by other codes As Appropriate 
• MS70 Driving with uncorrected defective eyesight 3 
• MS80 Refusing to submit to an eyesight test 3 
• MS90 Failure to give information as to identity of driver etc. 3 

 
Motorway Offences 

• MW10 Contravention of Special Roads Regulations (excluding speed limits) 3 
 
Pedestrian Crossings 

• PC10 Undefined Contravention of Pedestrian Crossing Regulation 3 
• PC20 Contravention of Pedestrian Crossing Regulations with moving vehicle 3 
• PC30 Contravention of Pedestrian Crossing Regulations with stationary vehicle 3 

 
Speed Limits 

• SP10 Exceeding goods vehicle speed limits 3-6 
• SP20 Exceeding speed limit for type of vehicle (excluding goods or passenger vehicles) 3-6 
• SP30 Exceeding statutory speed limit on a public road 3-6 
• SP40 Exceeding passenger vehicle speed limit 3-6 
• SP50 Exceeding speed limit on a motorway 3-6 

 
Traffic Directions And Signs 

• TS10 Failing to comply with traffic light signals 3 
• TS20 Failing to comply with double white lines 3 
• TS30 Failing to comply with ‘Stop’ sign 3 
• TS40 Failing to comply with direction of a constable/warden 3 
• TS50 Failing to comply with a traffic sign (excluding stop signs, traffic signs or double white 

lines) 3 
• TS60 Failing to comply with a school crossing patrol sign 3 
• TS70 Undefined failure to comply with a traffic direction sign 3 

 
Special Code 

• TT99 To signify a disqualification under totting-up procedure. 
If the total of penalty points reaches 12 or more within 3 years, the driver is liable to be disqualified 
 
Theft or Unauthorised Taking 

• UT50 Aggravated taking of a vehicle 3-11 
 
Aiding, abetting, counselling or procuring 
Offences as coded, but with 0 changed to 2 e.g. LC10 becomes LC12. 
 
 
Causing or permitting 

14 
 

Page 103



Offences as coded, but with 0 changed to 4 e.g. LC10 becomes LC14. 
 
Inciting 
Offences as coded, but with the end 0 changed to 6 e.g. DD40 becomes DD46. 
 
Non-endorsable offences 
Some offences are non-endorsable. A non-endorsable offence is an offence which courts do not 
endorse onto paper counterpart. No penalty points are attributed to these offences but they carry a 
period of disqualification. 
 
At the end of the disqualification (over 56 days) the driver will have to apply for a renewal licence 
together with the appropriate fee. Any queries about offences and endorsements should be 
directed to the convicting court. 
 
Period of time 
Periods of time are signified as follows: D=Days, M=Months, Y=Years 
Endorsements remain on a counterpart licence for the following periods of time: 
Endorsements must remain on a licence for 11 years from date of conviction if the offence is: 
 

• Drinking/drugs and driving (shown on the licence as DR10, DR20, DR20 and DR80). 
• Causing death by careless driving whilst under the influence of drink/drugs (shown on the 

licence as CD40, CD50 and CD 60). 
• Causing death buy careless driving, then failing to provide a specimen for analysis (shown 

on the licence as CD70). 
 

Or 4 years from the date of conviction if the offence is as listed below: 
• Reckless/dangerous driving (shown on the licence as DD40, DD60 and DD80). 
• Offences resulting in disqualification. 
• Disqualified from holding a full licence until a driving test has been passed. 

 
Or 4 years from the date of offence in all other cases. 
Source www.direct.gov.uk 

Issued by Kirklees Council, Licensing Department, Huddersfield 01484 456868 

 

 

15 
 

Page 104



1 
 

\\Sancifs\highways\Shared\Cabinet\2015-2016\Licensing Reports\2015-11-04 - November 2015\Taxi & Private Hire Licensing 
Fees\2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees.doc 

  
 
Name of meeting: Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date: 4th November 2015   
 
Title of report: Taxi & Private Hire Licensing - Fees 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Yes 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director - Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman - 15.10.2015 
 
David Smith - 14.10.2015 
 
 
Julie Muscroft - 15.10.2015 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Cllr Steve Hall 
Planning, Highways & Open Spaces 
 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 
 
1 Purpose of report 
 
1.1 For the Licensing Committee to determine approval for new fees for taxi and 

private hire licensing. To also consider the objections received from the taxi 
and private hire trade regarding fees and charges and to set a date for the fees 
to come into force with or without modification.  

 
1.2  Fees levied must be reasonable and should be set at a level to enable full cost 

recovery for the appropriate licensing services provided, so as to avoid any 
additional financial burden on the Council Tax Payer. 

 
 
 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 11



2 
 

\\Sancifs\highways\Shared\Cabinet\2015-2016\Licensing Reports\2015-11-04 - November 2015\Taxi & Private Hire Licensing 
Fees\2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees.doc 

2         Background 
 
2.1 Sections 53 and 70 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 

1976 (“the Act”) allow the Council to charge fees for the grant of licences in 
respect of hackney carriage and private hire drivers, vehicles and operators. 
The legislation specifies the elements that can be included in the cost of the 
licence fee.  

 
2.2     The cost of issue and administration can be recovered in drivers’ licence fees. 

In respect of vehicle and operator licences the reasonable cost of inspecting 
and enforcement may be charged. Additionally, the reasonable cost of 
providing hackney carriage stands and any reasonable administrative or other 
costs in connection with the foregoing and with the control and supervision of 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles can be included in the fees.  

 
2.3     The cost for the enforcement of unlicensed drivers, vehicles or operators cannot 

be included in the calculation. The Council cannot make a profit from licence 
fees and there must be a carry forward of any surplus. There can also be 
recovery of any deficit. 

 
2.4  The last inflationary increase in licensing fees was implemented in October 

2014.  That increase was at the then rate of inflation in recognition of the 
economic downturn.  
 
The proposed increases and decreases in fees are necessary to ensure the 
Licensing Section receives appropriate resources to:- 
 

i. carry out its administrative and inspection activities and maintain its 
enforcement role. 
 

ii. ensure that the section receives sufficient resources to ensure 
continued service delivery 

 
iii. achieve cost recovery. 

 
3.  Deregulation Act 2015 
 
3.1  The purpose of the ‘Deregulation Act is:  
 

i. to make provision for the reduction of burdens resulting from 
legislation for businesses or other organisations or for individuals  
 

ii. make provision for the repeal of legislation which no longer has 
practical use  

 

Page 106



3 
 

\\Sancifs\highways\Shared\Cabinet\2015-2016\Licensing Reports\2015-11-04 - November 2015\Taxi & Private Hire Licensing 
Fees\2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees.doc 

iii. make provision about the exercise of regulatory functions and for 
connected purposes  
 

3.2  The Act is some 169 pages and covers a multitude of issues.  
 
3.2.1 In summary the amendments to the Deregulation Act will change the legislation 

affecting taxis and private hire vehicles in two ways:  
 

i. Allowing private hire operators to sub-contract bookings to 
operators licensed in a different district. The basis of this is the 
belief that this would improve an operator’s ability to meet 
passengers' needs and make the passengers experience more 
convenient  
 

ii.  Making the standard duration for all taxi and PHV driver licences   
3 years. Shorter durations will only be granted on a case-by-case 
basis. This, the Government considers will reduce the financial 
and administrative burden of having to make more frequent 
licence renewals. 

 
4. Challenge to Proposed Fees and Charges  
 
4.1     On 23rd July 2015, a draft schedule of the proposed taxi and private hire fees 

and charges for the financial year 2015/16 was put out to consultation with the 
trade. A copy of the original proposals is attached at Appendix 1 of this report.  

 
4.2  A number of representations have been received from the trade and trade 

representatives. They object to the fees regarding drivers’ badges on the 
grounds that they are excessive. No representations have been received 
regarding the reductions in vehicle licensing fees’. Copies of the consultation 
responses are at Appendix 2  

 
4.3    Following receipt of the objections the Council has been in dialogue with trade 

representatives providing information on the fees setting process and 
responding to queries. 

 
4.4    From the information supplied on the fees in Appendix 1 the trade have 

identified one specific error which has been corrected. Despite this the 
objection has not been withdrawn.  

 
4.5     The Council’s process for setting the taxi and private hire fees and charges has 

not undergone detailed assessment for a number of years. With the 
introduction of changes to licence durations it was felt that a detailed costs 
assessment must be carried out on this occasion.  The assessment is 
represented by the spreadsheet in Appendix 4 

Page 107



4 
 

\\Sancifs\highways\Shared\Cabinet\2015-2016\Licensing Reports\2015-11-04 - November 2015\Taxi & Private Hire Licensing 
Fees\2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees.doc 

 
4.6     Licensing accounts are subject to annual inspection by the council’s finance and 

audit team and no anomalies have been reported.  
 
4.7    The Licensing & Safety Committee must consider the objections; approve the 

taxi and private hire fees and charges for 2015/16 with or without modification 
and set a date for implementation which must be no later than 13th November 
2015. 

  
5.  Legal Requirements 
 
5.1  As required by Section 70 of the Act, a notice was published in the 

Huddersfield Examiner and Dewsbury Reporter advertising the fees and 
charges and confirming they would take effect from 13th November 2015. 

 
6. Detailed Proposals 
 
6.1 An increase is proposed across all discretionary fees covering taxi & private 

hire driver and operator licensing. A decrease is proposed in respect of 
licensed vehicle fees. (Members are reminded that fees relating to licences 
issued under the Licensing Act for alcohol, entertainment, and late night 
refreshment activities, are set by central government and have not been 
increased since the Act came into force in 2005.)   

 
6.2 The full range of proposed fees for taxi and private hire licensing are at 

Appendix 3. The fee setting processing combines all of the business support 
officers and licensing officer’s average timings for carrying out their functions 
for the particular application process and management of that licence. The 
timings have been established for the average application or licence, that being 
one that fits the norm rather than a complex or simple application. Although 
there will be applications and licences that are more or less complex than the 
norm, these tend to balance each other out. The rates  have been calculated 
for each of the different bands of officers involved in the process which takes 
into account not only the officer’s salary costs but also the direct costs 
associated with that licensing regime, e.g. central service recharges such as 
HR, IT building maintenance to direct charges for legal, Committee Services, 
etc.  

 
6.3 To calculate the fee the officer’s hours are put together and the costs for those 

timings established. The total amount is then deemed to be the reasonable fee 
for that application process and to ensure compliance for that particular licence  

 
 
 
 

Page 108



5 
 

\\Sancifs\highways\Shared\Cabinet\2015-2016\Licensing Reports\2015-11-04 - November 2015\Taxi & Private Hire Licensing 
Fees\2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees.doc 

7.  Resource Implications 
 
7.1 Proposed fees will help maintain the level of Licensing’s enforcement role 

across all licensable activities, including maintaining vehicle and driver 
standards within the Kirklees taxi and private hire fleet. 

 
8. Consultees & their opinions 
  
8.1 Trade and Members.  Appendix 1 gives the trade responses. No Member 

opinions recorded 
 
9.   Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
 

Portfolio Holder, Cllr Steve Hall, has noted the report and would like to 
 recommend that Cabinet approve the proposals in full in order that the current 
 level of service delivery be maintained. 
 
10.  Officer recommendations 
 
10.1 Officers recommend, that Cabinet approve the new fees structure, set out in 

Appendix 3, for implementation with effect from 13th November 2015. 
 
11.  Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 
 
Neal Fearns 
Head of Building Control & Licencing 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: neal.fearns@kirklees.gov.uk 

 

Papers: 

Appendix 1: First draft proposed fees 

Appendix 2: Consultation responses 

Appendix 3: Final proposed fees 

Appendix 4: Spreadsheet showing fee analysis 

 

10.  Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 

Page 109



Appendix 1  

 

Date: Monday, 28 July 2015
 
Dear Member 
 
Re:  Proposed changes to taxi and private hire fees and licences.  
 
From the 1st October 2015, Kirklees Council will be making Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Driver licenses (badges) available for a period of three years. 
 
The implementation will be introduced over a rolling period so that three year grants of a 
Drivers Badge will coincide with the 3 yearly DBS renewal. 
 
This means, any existing driver due for a new DBS from the 1st October this year will be allowed 
a three year badge subject to meeting all other criteria for a three year badge.  If a DBS is not 
due until the following year, then a driver will be issued with a 1 year badge but may next year 
on renewal and after completion of the DBS receive a 3 year badge.  Similarly, if a driver 
renewing after 1st October had his DBS last year, he can have a two year badge and once the 
DBS is renewed in 2 years’ time, he can then have a 3 year badge.  
 
Also on the 1st October changes to the duration of a Private Hire Operator Licences also come 
into effect. From that date, licences may be granted for a period of up to 5 years.  
 
As part of the changes to badge duration we will also be delivering some driver refresher 
training to all existing badge holders.  This training will be free of charge and drivers have now 
been written to with an invitation to attend on a specific date.  If a driver cannot attend on the 
date they have been allocated, it is imperative that they contact the office to make alternative 
arrangements. If they fail to attend the training and fail to make alternative arrangements then 
they may find that their badge renewal is delayed until such time they have completed the 
training.  I would welcome your support in encouraging drivers to attend the training. 
 
The changes to licences will also have an impact on current fee charges and all our fees have 
recently been reviewed and a new table of proposed fees is attached for your information.   
 
You will note that whilst some fees have increased others have reduced – in some cases quite 
significantly.   
 
Any  objections  in  respect  of  the  above  proposals  must  be  submitted  in  writing  to  the 
undersigned by 22nd August 2015.    If no objections are  received  the varied  fees  listed above 
shall come into effect on the 1st October 2015. 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
Catherine Walter 
Licensing Manager 
 
 
 

 

Page 110



Appendix 1  

 

Taxi Licensing 2015 
 

 

 

  Current  Proposed  Difference 

New Driver Application 1 year 
(includes DBS) 

£265.40    £234.00 
 

‐£31.40 

New Driver Application 3 Year 
(includes DBS) 

               £420.00   
      

Driver Renewal 1 Year 
(No DBS) 

     £52.50          £90.00       +£37.50 

Driver Renewal 3 Year 
(including DBS) 

          £333.00        
 

New Vehicle Licence 1 year 
 

£257.60    £230.00 
 

      ‐£27.60 

Vehicle Renewal 1 year 
 

      £206.10          £177.00        ‐£29.10 

Operator Licence (2 vehicles or less) 
1 year 

£98.00 
    

£93.00  ‐£5.00 

Operator Licence (2 vehicles or less) 
5 years 

  £433.00   

 
Operator Licence (3 vehicles or more) 

1 year 

 
£206.55 

 
£227.00 

 
+£20.45 

Operator Licence (3 vehicles or more)  
5 years 

  £1,115.00   
 

Vehicle Transfer  £38.25 
 

£50.00 
 

+£11.75 
 

                   Duplicate Vehicle Licence  
 

£18.50  £10.50  ‐£8.00 

Vehicle Change 
 

£254.60  £173.00  ‐£81.60 

Please see below examples of how the fee changes impact on two 
of the most common applications 

 
 
 

New driver and New Vehicle 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Current Combined Cost 
 

£522.60 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Combined 
Cost 

£464.00 

 
 
 
 
 

Overall saving for 
drivers =£58.60 

 

 
 

Driver and vehicle renewal 
 

 
Current Combined Cost 

£258.60 

 
Proposed Combined 

Cost 
£267.00 

 

 
Overall drivers will pay 

additional £2.30 
 

Page 111



Page 112

kareneastwood
Sticky Note
Appendix 2



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Appendix 3

Current
Annual
Fees

Proposed
Annual
Fees

+ Increase /
- Reduction

1st October 2015

New Driver Application
(Incl. DBS check £56.00 fee) £265.40 £234.00 -£31.40

New Vehicle £257.60 £230.00 -£27.60

Existing Driver Renewal
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £52.50 £90.00 +£37.50

Existing Vehicle Renewal £212.20 £177.00 -£35.20

Operator Licence (2 vehicles or less)
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £98.00 £93.00 -£5.00

Operator Licence (3 vehicles or more)
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £206.55 £227.00 +£20.45

Vehicle Change £257.60 £230.00 -£27.60

Transfer of Vehicle £38.25 £40.00 +£1.75

Duplicate Vehicle Licence £18.50 £10.50 -£8.00

Total Cost
of

Annual Licence over 
3 yrs

New
3 Yr

Licence
proposed fee

Total Cost
of

Annual Licence 
over 5 yrs

New
5 Yr

Licence
proposed fee Saving

New Driver Application
(Incl. DBS check £56.00 fee in first year only) £420.00 £401.00 -£19.00

Existing Driver Renewal
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £276.00 £258.00 -£18.00

Operator Licence (2 vehicles or less)
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £484.00 £445.00 -£39.00

Operator Licence (3 vehicles or more)
(Excl. DBS £56.00 fee only payable when check required) £1,181.00 £1,144.00 -£37.00

All licences exceeding one year, assume an annual inflation increase of 2%.

Assumes inflation@2% in Yrs 2 & 3 Assumes inflation@2% in Yrs 2 - 5

Page 170



Notes

Licence fee £93.60 to be paid up front,

no refund if application unsuccessful.

Page 171



Licensing HC/PH Costings 2015/16 Appendix 4

Type of Licence

New HC/PH 

driver

12 months

New HC/PH 

driver

3 Yr Licence

Driver Renewal 

12 months

Driver Renewal 

3 Yr Licence

New Vehicle 

PH/HC & 

Vehicle 

Change

12 months 

only

Vehicle Renewal 

PH or HC

12 months

only

Operator 2

or less

12months

Operator 2

or less 

5 Yr Licence

Operator 3+ 

12months

Operator 3+ 

5 Yr Licence

Transfer 

of a 

Vehicle

Number of applications per year 5,400 300 2323 522 1973 57 47 178

BSO Av Total minutes/Lic 60 90 30 60 45 30 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 30
Licensing staff Av Total minutes/Lic 6 8 1 3 2.3 2.3 10 10 10 10 1

Staff & Overhead Costs £88.00 £238.50 £77.00 £228.30 £106.00 £105.55 £92.95 £444.95 £226.95 £1,143.95 £51.06

Committee/Officer Panels, medicals, ongoing 
administration, complaints, transport, etc
Equipment, Supplies & Services £13.50 £30.00 £13.00 £29.70 £13.00 £5.45 £0.05 £0.05 £0.05 £0.05 £0.05

DVLA, unmet demand, badges, map, etc.
Vehicle Equipment & Services £111.00 £66.00

Signs, plates, inspection, hpi, etc
SUB TOTAL £ £101.50 £268.50 £90.00 £258.00 £230.00 £177.00 £93.00 £445.00 £227.00 £1,144.00 £51.11

Extra's

Driver Training Course no vat £76.50 £76.50

DBS (old CRB)  £56.00 no vat £56.00 £56.00 When Required When Required When Required
When Required

x 2 When Required
When Required

x 2

Full

Increase

not applied

Proposed Fees for Oct 2015 £234.00 £401.00 £90.00 £258.00 £230.00 £177.00 £93.00 £445.00 £227.00 £1,144.00 £40.00

16/10/2015Appendix 4.F.xlsx

P
age 172



LIC-15-005 

Rossendale 
 

  
 
Name of meeting:  Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:    4 November 2015 
 
Title of report:   Briefing Paper - Rossendale 
 
Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Yes 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny?
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director – Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman - 09/09/15 
 
David Smith - 10/09/15 
Debbie Hogg on behalf of  
 
Julie Muscroft - 10/09/15 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

 Cllr Steve Hall – Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 
1. Introduction  
This briefing paper has been brought to Committee at the request of the Chair of the 
Licensing & Safety committee, Cllr Smith to inform Members of the current status 
nationally of issues arising out of Rossendale.  
 
2. The Law 
The decision in R (APP NEWCASTLE CITY COUNCIL) –V- BERWICK-UPON-
TWEED BOROUGH COUNCIL [2008] EWHC 2369 made it clear that once a vehicle 
has been licensed as a hackney carriage it is a hackney carriage for the duration of 
that licence, wherever it is currently located, and can therefore be used for pre-booked 
purposes in any district in England and Wales. Additionally it is not an offence for a 
licensed private hire operator to take bookings for, and then dispatch a hackney 
carriage licensed by a district which is different from that which licenses the operator, 
a hackney carriage can lawfully be used to pre-booked work outside its district. 
 

Page 173

Agenda Item 12



LIC-15-005 

Rossendale 
 

3. Drivers licensed outside of Kirklees 
Rossendale Borough Council does not limit the number of hackney carriage driver 
licences that they issue.  This had led to a huge increase in applications for hackney 
carriage and driver applications.  It is widely reported that the numbers in Rossendale 
have increased year on year and as at 24th July 2015 the public register at 
Rossendale shows that over 2000 hackney carriages are licensed in Rossendale and 
over 2500 hackney carriage drivers.  The public register at the same date shows that 
there are only 6 private hire drivers licensed in Rossendale and one private hire 
vehicle.   There is clearly a disproportionate amount of hackney carriage drivers and 
vehicles compared to private hire drivers and vehicles. 
 
An issue of growing in concern across Yorkshire and the North West is the amount of 
drivers choosing to license with Rossendale Council. There is currently no national 
law that requires drivers to register with the local authority in which their base is 
situated and the majority of their work takes place, though traditionally this has been 
the understood way of working.   
 
There will always be an amount of travel occurring ‘cross-border’ from one local 
authority to the next as drivers take clients to their destinations. This will increase 
further in October when as a result of the deregulation Act 2015 a licensed private hire 
operator in one district can lawfully sub-contract a booking  
 
Recently however, an increasing number of drivers living, based and almost 
exclusively driving within Kirklees and other areas of the Combined Authority (CA) are 
applying for their licence at Rossendale. This concern is echoed by each district of the 
CA and also Authorities such as Manchester, Oldham and other areas.  
 
The main issues with cross border licensing are: 
 
Licensing fees are paid to Rossendale but enforcement is undertaken by CA officers, 
the costs of which are not being met by fee income. Other authorities are challenging 
Rossendale on this basis. 
 
Drivers that have had their licence revoked in CA areas can apply to authorities for a 
Hackney Carriage license that permits the driving of Private Hire cars anywhere. 
Whilst we do have a good information sharing protocol in place to mitigate this, the 
principle is a national concern that authorities are lobbying Government to consider.  

 
Kirklees are currently taking steps to ensure our enforcement officers can enforce 
Rossendale’s conditions on drivers operating here, although this still won’t address 
the cost issue.  
Legally, there is currently nothing that Kirklees can do to lawfully prevent out of area 
hackney carriages operating through local firms.  
Rossendale have just finished a consultation with their trade whereby they are hoping 
to introduce a number of new processes, policies and conditions. One of these is “An 
Intended Use” policy whereby if a hackney driver cannot satisfy them that they will be 
working in the Rossendale area they may not be granted a licence or have an existing 
licence renewed. Officers are observing this to see whether or not this Policy is 
actually introduced.  

Page 174



LIC-15-005 

Rossendale 
 

 
4. Government Response 
'The Law Commission did look to improve the enforcement of conditions. A draft Taxi 
Bill published in 2014 suggested an introduction of national standards for private hire 
and minimum standards for taxis designed to make enforcement easier, particularly 
cross-border enforcement and also new powers to licensing officers to deal with a 
number of other enforcement matters. 
When the Bill was published in May 2014 the Government had one year to respond. 
To date no response has been forthcoming from the newly elected Government either.  
 
5. Conclusion  
The report informs the Committee of the current position nationally on the position of 
Rossendale as it currently stands. 
 
6. Recommendations 
Committee is asked to note the contents of the report.   
 
7.  Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
 
 
8. Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
9. Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



LIC-15-006 

Uber Position 26.08.15 
 

  
 
Name of meeting:  Licensing & Safety Committee 
Date:    4 November 2015 
 
Title of report:   Briefing Paper - UBER 
 

Is it likely to result in spending or 
saving £250k or more, or to have a 
significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

Not Applicable 

Is it in the Council’s Forward Plan? 
 

Yes 

Is it eligible for “call in” by Scrutiny? 
 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & name 
 
Is it signed off by the Director of 
Resources? 
 
Is it signed off by the Assistant 
Director – Legal, Governance & 
Monitoring? 
 

Jacqui Gedman – 09/09/15 
 
David Smith – 09/09/15 
Debbie Hogg on behalf of 
 
Julie Muscroft – 10/09/15 
 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

 Cllr Steve Hall – Planning, 
Highways & Open Spaces 

 
Electoral wards affected and ward councillors consulted: ALL 
 
Public or private: Public 
. 
 

1. Introduction  

1.1 This briefing paper has been brought to Committee at the request of the Chair of 
the Licensing & Safety committee, Cllr Smith to inform Members of the current status 
nationally of Uber.  

 

2. UBER 

Uber is an American company which develops markets and operates the Uber mobile 
app, which allows consumers to submit a trip request which is then routed to sharing 
economy drivers. Uber is a technology platform that mediates between supply and 
demand using smartphones. Primarily, right now, the main service is urban passenger 
transport, helping people get a ride around towns and cities in the UK.  

Uber is a licenced private hire operator in more than 26 UK cities and towns including 
Birmingham, Bristol, Leeds, London, Manchester, Newcastle and Sheffield. An 
operator licence was granted to Uber in Kirklees in March 2015. There are currently 
39 licensed drivers and 33 licensed vehicles linked to Uber in Kirklees. As of April 
2015 Uber was operating in 19 out of 28 EU countries. 

Page 177

Agenda Item 13

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/scrutiny/Scrutiny.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp
http://www2.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/councillors/yourcouncillors.asp


LIC-15-006 

Uber Position 26.08.15 
 

Uber own no licensed vehicles or employ any licensed drivers. The vehicles and 
drivers are classified as self-employed and contract with Uber to deliver services. It is 
estimated that there are 15000 drivers & vehicles in London alone.  

There are ongoing lawsuits in France, Germany, Belgium, and Spain. Arguments in 
favour of Uber tend to be around consumer choice and driver flexibility. Those 
opposed to the use of the app in London argue that it is being used illegally so that, in 
effect, PHVs can act like taxis by plying for hire and using a smartphone as a 
taximeter to calculate fares. They are also concerned about driver and passenger 
safety. 

In its December 2014 report on the taxi trade in London the London Assembly 
Transport Committee set out the cabbies’ concerns about Uber as follows:  

Uber London is a technological platform that allows passengers to hire a private hire 
vehicle through a smartphone app. Both licensed taxi and existing private hire 
operators have expressed strong reservations about the legality of its operating 
model, arguing that the smartphone used by Uber drivers constitutes a ‘taximeter’, 
and that the app allows for ‘immediate hiring’- both of which are illegal under current 
private hire legislation.  

Uber London was licensed as a private hire operator by TfL in 2012. Since then, TfL 
have faced strong criticism from the trades for granting the licence and for failing to 
effectively regulate Uber’s operations in London. Similar criticism has been levied at 
other Local Authorities who have licensed Uber.  

The fundamental issue remains unresolved. In London TfL has taken a provisional 
view that the Uber driver’s smartphone is not operating as a taximeter and therefore 
not contravening the legislation. However, having listened to the concerns raised by 
the taxi and private hire trades and what they have said about how the legislation 
should be interpreted, TfL concluded that there is ambiguity about how the statutory 
prohibition on the use of taximeters should be applied to the use of smartphones.  

TfL is therefore of the view that the appropriate way to resolve this is to seek a binding 
ruling from the High Court in the form of a High Court Declaration. TfL believes that 
this is the fastest and fairest way to resolve this issue, allowing all parties the 
opportunity to make representations to the Court. That said, the case has failed to 
progress. TfL states that this is because in July 2014 the Licensed Taxi Drivers 
Association (LTDA) filed separate criminal proceedings against six Uber drivers, which 
took precedence over TfL’s referral. The LTDA later agreed to allow the criminal case 
to adjourn so that the TfL case could progress, but this did not happen. TfL said that 
they believed that the summonses have to be withdrawn by the LTDA for that to 
happen. 

Reports in March 2015 indicated that LTDA had done this and that TfL’s application 
could proceed. On 27 July TfL tweeted that they had applied to the High Court for a 
ruling, with the hearing set for 5 and 6 October 2015. 

Once the High Court has determined the application, there will hopefully be clarity for 
other Local Authorities on the use of smart phones being used as a booking platform.. 

 

3. Legal Considerations  

There are no legal considerations other than those already highlighted within the 
report  

 

Page 178



LIC-15-006 

Uber Position 26.08.15 
 

 
4. Resource implications 

Not Applicable 

 

5. Conclusion  

The report informs the Committee of the current position nationally on the position of 
Uber as it currently stands. 

 

6. Recommendations 

Committee is asked to note the contents of the report.   

 
7.  Cabinet portfolio holder recommendation  
 
 
8.  Contact officer and relevant papers 

Catherine Walter 
Licensing, Local Land Charges & Highways Registry Manager 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

9.  Assistant director responsible  

Paul Kemp 
Assistant Director – Place 
Tel: 01484 221000 
Email: paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 179

http://intranet.kirklees.gov.uk/peopleFinder/collection.aspx?id=5014&type=jobtitle&name=Licensing%2c+Local+Land+Charges+%26+Highways+Registry+Manager
mailto:catherine.walter@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:paul.kemp@kirklees.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Interests
	7 Revised Gambling Policy - Statement Of Principles
	GamblingPolicyReport to L&S2015
	Appendix 1 Final - Draft 2016 Policy

	8 Taxi & Private Hire Licensing - Driver Conditions
	Report Driver conditions
	Appendix1Conditions -driver 
	Appendix2driverconditionsresponses
	Appendix1Conditions -driver .pdf
	PART 11 – LICENSING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES
	STANDARD CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO THE ISSUE OF A HACKNEY
	CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE
	In this Condition



	9 Licensed Vehicle Age Limits & Insurance total loss vehicles (write offs)
	Report vehicle age policy2015
	Appendix1AgePolicy
	Appendix2traderepsagepolicy

	10 Assessment Criteria and Convictions Policy for Licensed Drivers (1)
	Report convictions criteria policy2015
	Appendix1revised assessment criteriaconvictions policy 2015

	11 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing - Fees
	2015-11-04_Licensing & Safety Committee_Taxi & Private Hire Licensing_Fees
	Appendix 1.F
	Appendix 2.F
	Appendix 3.F
	Appendix 4.F

	12 Briefing Paper - Rossendale
	ROSSENDALEreport

	13 Briefing Paper - UBER



